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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Thirty Seventh Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 
st March, 2024 (“year under review”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

st March, 2024 are as 
follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

 Particulars  Consolidated  Standalone

2023-24 2023-24

Net Sales/ Income from Operations 77752.21 79859.80 66094.66

Other Income 691.53 265.62

Total Income 78443.74 66360.28 66789.60

8614.04 8227.05 7365.41

Finance Cost 4213.58 3929.80

4400.46 4557.45 3435.61

Depreciation 2553.30 2522.78 1047.56

1847.16 2388.05

674.34 592.96 629.45 566.70

1172.82 1758.60

(1153.05) - -

19.77 1758.60

Other Comprehensive Income 1.88 7.36

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 21.65 1765.96

1220.94 1220.94

37778.13 32488.82

0.16 14.40

0.16 50.94 14.40

Dividend - - - -

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

SHARE CAPITAL

Dates Description No. of 
shares

Total value of
shares (INR)

Share Capital at the beginning of the year

Addition

2282 22820

Share Capital at the end of the year
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th

DIVIDEND

st March, 2024.

DETAILS AND PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Domestic Subsidiaries

Bhartiya Global Marketing Limited

J&J Leather Enterprises Limited

This Company is a tannery to support our leather garments and accessories business through conversion of wet blue leather 

Bhartiya International SEZ Limited

Bhartiya Fashion Retail Limited

Bhartiya Urban Infrastructure Limited

The Company incurred a loss of Rs. 

Overseas Subsidiaries 

Ultima S.A. Switzerland

World Fashion Trade Limited, Mauritius

Ultima Italia SRL, Italy

Design Industry Limited, Hongkong

Design Industry China Limited, China
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revenue of the Company reported as R during the 

New Subsidiary /Associate Company Incorporated / Dissolved during the year

Associate Company was dissolved during the year under review.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

st March, 2024 has been 

st March, 2024.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the relevant Indian Accounting 
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this Report.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

Annual General Meeting for inspection by members.

st March, 2024, 
are set out in Annexure-‘A’ to this Report.

rd

DIRECTORS

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment

Re-appointment of Independent Director for second consecutive term

the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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authority.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl. No. Name of the person Designation

2.

Company Secretary

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

a) st March, 2024, the applicable accounting 

b) that the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
st March, 

c) 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

d) 

e) 

f) that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. The Policy broadly lays down the guiding principles, philosophy and 
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BOARD EVALUATION

composition and effectiveness of Meetings. The Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance, contribution at 

th March, 2024 without the presence of Non- 
Independent Directors and members of the management.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors are familiarised with the operations and functioning of the Company at the time of their appointment 
and on an ongoing basis. The details of the training and familiarisation program are provided in the Corporate Governance 
Report and is also available on the website of the Company at 

.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

integral part of this Report.

STATUTORY AUDIT

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 29th

th

th Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

st

as Annexure ‘B’ 
review.

th February, 
st March, 2024, was submitted to 

www.bhartiya.com.
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COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

24 is provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

CSR policy.

Annexure ‘C’ and forms an integral part of this Report. The Policy has been 
uploaded on Company’s website at www.bhartiya.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORTING

st March, 2024.

ANNUAL RETURN

www.bhartiya.com and 
.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered with related parties for the year under review were on an arm’s length basis and in ordinary course 

transactions are mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

All transactions with related parties were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and were in accordance with 

into by the Company during the year under review with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 

Omnibus approval is obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature with Related Parties. A statement 
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and revise the thresholds for entering transactions with related parties and terms thereto. The Company’s Policy on dealing 
with and materiality of related party transactions is available on the website of the Company at https://bhartiyafashion.com/

.

fees.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY

given in the notes to Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

treasury management and effective use of hedge options.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

posted on the website of the Company (www.bhartiya.com).

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

conduct of operations in such a manner so as to ensure safety of all concerned, compliances environmental regulations and 
preservation of natural resources.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and that the transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. 

and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has a robust Management Information System, which is an 
integral part of the control mechanism.

CREDIT RATING

IND 
BBB stable outlook th

 Proposed term loan of Rs. 79.62 crores. 

term rating has remained the same.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

detailed in this Report as well as Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

Company and its future operations.

COST AUDIT AND MAINTANANCE OF COST RECORD

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO.

st

Annexure ‘D’ forming part of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

assets is the strong foundation for creating many possibilities for its business. Our approach towards attracting and nurturing 

collaboration by providing leading-edge learning and development support to our managers.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
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part of this Report.

information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection at the registered 

Annual Report including the aforesaid information is also available on the Company’s website.

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT FOR UNCLAIMED SHARES

There are no unclaimed shares of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

the previous three Financial Years by the Company are as given below:

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

GENERAL

on these matters during the year under review:

a) 

b) 
from any of its subsidiaries.

c) 
status and Company’s operations in future.

d) 

e) There has been no changes in the nature of business of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors are highly grateful for all the help, guidance and support received from the valued customers, suppliers, 

the Company forward.

 

 For and on behalf of the Board

 
 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman
 DIN: 00928080
Gurugram, 9

th August, 2024
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ANNEXURE A 
(ESOP DISCLOSURE)

variation in the Scheme.

A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the “Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based payments” issued by ICAI 
www.bharti-

yafashion.com

Particulars Standalone (in Rs.) Consolidated (in Rs.)

0.20

0.20

C. 

Name of the Scheme

Date of shareholders approval

400,000

Committee.

Committee.

date of such respective vesting.

Source of shares (primary, secondary or combination) Primary

None

using the intrinsic value of the options, the difference 
between the employee compensation cost so computed 
and the employee compensation cost that shall have 

options shall be disclosed.

the company shall also be disclosed.

Not applicable

D. 

Particulars Year ended 
31st March, 2024

Senior managerial personnel Nil

more of the Options granted during that year.
Nil

the time of grant.

Nil
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Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2024

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period

Number of options granted during the year Nil

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year Nil

Number of options vested during the year Nil

2,282

Nil

directly by the company (INR)

Not Applicable

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year

- 
- 

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

the year to estimate the fair value of options including the following 
information:
- Date of Grant
- 
- 
- 
- Option life (comprising of weighted average of vesting period and 

- 
- 

Not Applicable as no options were granted 
during the year.

The method used and the assumptions made to incorporate the effects of 
is not accurate / uniform, hence not 

deviation of the continuously compounded 

of time. For calculating volatility, the daily 

period prior to the date of grant has been 
considered.

No other feature has been considered for 

in the points above.
 rd

st

longer remain in force.
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ANNEXURE B
(SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT) 

FORM NO. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Members

Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600 048

corporate practices by BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company”). The Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances 

the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 

made hereinafter:-

st

2. 

4. 

5. 
Act’):-

a) 

b) 

c) Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

d)  
(To be enter applicable);

e) (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

f) 

g) (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

h) Not applicable to the 
company during the audit period) and
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i) 

j) 
applicable.

6. 

designated professionals.

i) 

ii) 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and 
Standards etc. mentioned above.

monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

Annexure-A” and forms an integral part of this 
report.

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS RAVI SHARMA
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666 
UDIN: F004468F000921648
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020

Delhi, 9th August, 2024
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Annexure-A to Secretarial Audit Report

The Members

Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600 048

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

2. 

basis for our opinion.

4. 
Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. 

6. 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

CS RAVI SHARMA
Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666 
UDIN: F004468F000921648
Peer Review Cert. No. 978/2020

Delhi, 9th August, 2024
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ANNEXURE C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

www.bhartiya.
com.
period.

2. 
projects. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl.
No.

Name of Director Designation/ 
Nature of 

Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal Chairperson 4 4

2 Member 4 4

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi Member 4 4

disclosed on the website of the company.

 

4. 
Not Applicable

5. 
Not Applicable.

6. 

7. 

NIL 

(d.)  Unspent amount of previous years- NIL

8. 

9. 

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year
(in Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund 

second proviso to section 135(5)

Amount (in Rs.) Date of 
transfer

Name of the 
Fund

Amount Date of 
transfer

-

(b) NIL

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl.
No.

Name 
of the 
Project

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of 
the project

Project 
duration

Amount 
allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 

current

Year (in Rs.)

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account for the 
project as per 

Section 135(6) (in 
Rs.)

Mode of 
Implementa 
tion-Direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation

– Through 
Implementing Agency

State District Name CSR
Registration 

number
- - - - - - - - - - - - -
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(c) 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl.
No.

Name of the 
Project

Item from the list of 
activities in schedule 
VII to the Act

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of the project Amount spent 
for the project 

(in Rs.)

Mode of 
implementati 

on- Direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
– Through implementing 

agency

State District Name CSR
registration 

number

24
Rural Development Project-

dispensary.
Yes Tamil Nadu Yes Not Applicable

2
24

Rural Development Project-
Construction of road

Yes Tamil Nadu Yes No Applicable

24 differently abled people
Yes

Nadu. Nadu.
Rs. 97,672/- Yes No Applicable

4
24

Yes Yes No Applicable

TOTAL Rs. 27,08,231/-

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Rs. 27,08,231/-

(g) Rs. 81,389/-

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.)

under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if 
any.

Amount 
remaining to be 

spent
in succeeding 

(in Rs.)
Name of 
the Fund

Amount (in Rs) Date of 
transfer

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl.
No.

Project 
ID

Name of the 
Project

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in Rs.)

Amount spent 
on the project 

in the reporting 
Financial Year 

(in Rs)

Cumulative 
amount spent at 

the end
of reporting 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.)

Status of 
the project- 
Completed/ 

Ongoing

N.A.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Manoj Khattar  Snehdeep Aggarwal

Gurugram, 9th
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ANNEXURE D

a. Conservation of Energy

b. Technology Absorption

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

 

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Snehdeep Aggarwal
 Chairman
Gurugram, 9th August, 2024  DIN: 00928080
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

st March, 2024, in terms of 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance revolves around the principles of ethical governance which guides 

management, is not a mere legal compulsion but rather a way of life, which helps in inspiring and strengthening investor’s 

leadership through continuous endeavor to improve upon governance aspects on an on-going basis and adopts innovative 
approaches for leveraging resources, converting opportunities and motivation fostering a healthy growth and development of 

social responsibilities.

with regard to Corporate Governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures. In addition, 

a. Composition of the Board, Other Directorships and Committee Memberships:

st

strategic decisions.

below:

Name Director 

Number

Date of 
Appointment#

Category of 
Directors

Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of 
Directorship held 
in Other Listed 
Companies and 

Category of 
Directorship

Chairman Member

Mr. Snehdeep
Aggarwal

00928080 Promoter, Non- - - - -

5 - -

Moore Jr. Independent Director
- - - -

Independent Director
- - - -
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Name Director 

Number

Date of 
Appointment#

Category of 
Directors

Directorships 
in other 

Indian Public 
Limited 

Companies

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
other Committees

List of 
Directorship held 
in Other Listed 
Companies and 

Category of 
Directorship

Chairman Member

Mrs. Sannovanda 
Machaiah Swathi

06952954
Independent Director

4 - 4

Independent Director
Orient Green Power 

Independent Director

Ghei Independent Director
- - - -

Independent Director
- - - -

Independent Director
- - - -

Committees.

4. Details of Director(s) retiring or being re-appointed are given in the notice to Annual General Meeting. The brief 
www.bhartiya.com.

thereunder.

to each other.

b. Number of Board Meetings:

Secretarial Standards.

th th

th th

from time to time.
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st March, 2024 and at the 
previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) was as under:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings 
Attended *

Attendance at Last AGM

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal 4 Absent

4 Present

4 Absent

4 Absent

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi 4 Absent

4 Absent

4 Absent

4 Present

 Selection of Independent Directors

Directorship(s) and Membership(s) held in various committees of other companies by such persons in accordance the 

reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact his/ her ability to discharge his/ her duties with an objective 

c. Skills/expertise/competencies of the Board
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Name of the Directors
as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s)

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal
Strategy and Corporate Management

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah 
Swathi

environment, has represented the country and the Defense Services internationally on 
several occasions.

d. Information Supplied to the Board

applicable and relevant. Such information is submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of the respective 
Meetings or by way of presentations and discussions during the Meetings.

e. Post Meeting Mechanism

divisions for their further actions.

f. Board Support

governance.

g. Shareholding of Non-Executive Directors

st

Name of the Directors No. of shares held

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal

h. Roles, Responsibilities and Duties of the Board
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i. Independent Directors

www.bhartiya.com. The same is issued 

not serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed companies. Further, no Independent Director serves as a 

j. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

 At the time of appointing an Independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to concerned Director, which 

to the Independent Directors on various matters inter-alia covering the Company’s and its subsidiaries/associates 

responsibilities of the Independent Directors under various statutes and other relevant matters.

the website of the Company and can be accessed on 

themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concern or interest.

 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(i.) Composition

and to obtain outside legal and professional advice.
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 Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Audit Committee. The Statutory and Internal Auditors, Chief Financial 

(ii.) Meetings and Attendance during the Financial Year 2023-24

th th th th February, 2024. The 

 The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Table below 
provides the attendance of the Audit Committee members:

Director 30.05.2023 11.08.2023 14.11.2023 12.02.2024

P P P P

P P P P

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P P

(iii) Terms of Reference

c. Approving payment to statutory auditors, including cost auditors, if any, for any other services rendered by them.

Report of the Company from time to time

• Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

• Disclosure of related party transactions

f. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 

matter.

g. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.

i. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
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l. Reviewing with the management, the performance of statutory auditors, including cost auditors and internal 

internal audit

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature, and reporting the matter to the 

p. Discussion with statutory auditors, before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post 
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors

t. Frame and review policies in relation to implementation of the Company’s code of conduct and Code of conduct 

Directors and/or other Committees of Directors.

w. Reviewing the following information:

• The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of internal auditors / chief internal auditor

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Composition of Remuneration and Nomination Committee is 
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the Meeting. The table below provides the Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members:

Director 30.05.2023 11.08.2023 14.11.2023

P P P

P P P

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P

(iii) Terms of reference

 The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:-

e. Payment of remuneration to the directors shall be approved by a resolution passed by the Nomination and 

implemented by the Company from time to time including:

• the conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for

performance of its duties.
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(iv) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

 Particulars of Senior Management as on March 31, 2024:

S. 
No.

Name Designation Change (Appointment/
Resignation) during FY 2023-24

-

2. Company Secretary -

-

4. -

(v) Remuneration of Directors

 

Name of the Director Salary (Rs.) Stock Options Notice Period

-

 

Name of the Director Board Meeting 
Fees (Rs.) *

Committee Meeting 
Fees (Rs.) *

Total (Rs.)

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal - - -

- - -

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi

- - -

75,000 - 75,000

the year under review.

responsibilities as the Chairman of the Company.

under review as approved by the shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 

employment/contract of service with the Company as management employees and therefore, their terms of employment 
vis-à-vis salary, variable pay, service contract, notice period and severance fee, if any, are governed by the applicable 
policies.

 There has been no other material pecuniary relationship or business transactions by the Company with any of the Non- 
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 BOARD EVALUATION

 

Committees and Directors.

to for evaluation.

composition and effectiveness of Meetings. The Directors were evaluated on aspects such as attendance, contribution at 

th March, 2024 without the presence 
of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management. The same was also discussed in the meetings of 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi.

 Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

yogesh.gautam@bhartiya.com.

(iii) Meetings and Attendance during the Financial Year 2023-24

Director 30.05.2023 11.08.2023 14.11.2023 12.02.2024

P P P P

P P P P

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P P
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(iv) Terms of Reference

a. Oversee and review and approve all matters connected with the transfer, transposition and transmission of the 

c. Monitor redressal of investors’/shareholders’/ security holders’ grievances about non-receipt of declared dividend, 

been redressed/answered to the satisfaction of shareholders. There was no grievance which was pending during the 
st March, 2024.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

 The Committee comprises of three Directors. Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal is the Chairman of the Committee. Other members 

 Three Meetings of the Committee were held during the year.

Director 30.05.2023 11.08.2023 14.11.2023 12.02.2024

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal P P P P

P P P P

Mrs. Sannovanda Machaiah Swathi P P P P

(iii) Terms of reference

 The broad terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as under:-

under.

d. To disseminate factually correct information to investors, institutions and the public at large.

performance of its duties.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

(i) Composition

Meetings Directors

Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal Mr. Manoj Khattar Mr. Vivek Kapur

P P A

P P A

P P A

P P P

P P A

P P A

P P A

(iii) Terms of Reference

 The broad terms of reference of the Management Committee are as under:-

routine basis.

b. Authorisation for dealing/liaising with various Statutory/Regulatory authorities including state, central authorities 

etc.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

th March, 2024 and discussed inter-alia on:

The Directors also discussed on the compliance status and the performance of the Company over a period of three years and 



44

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual 
General 
Meeting 
(AGM)

Date Time of 
AGM

Location No. of 
Special 

Resolutions 
passed

th AGM 29th

A.M.
2

th AGM 29th September, 2022
A.M.

4

th AGM 29th

A.M.
2

Special Resolution proposed to be passed by way of Postal Ballot

CREDIT RATING

th

term rating has remained the same.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

www.
bhartiya.com.

(iv) Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is sent to the shareholders of the Company.

(vii) A separate dedicated section under “Investor Relations”, on the Company’s website gives information on all disclosures 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AGM: Date, Time and Mode: Day and Date: Friday, 27th

set out in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

2. Financial Calendar for 2024-25

Financial year - April to March
th June 2024: th of August, 2024
th September 2024: th of November, 2024
st December 2024: th of February, 2025

st March 2025: th of May, 2025
st September, 2024 to Friday, the 27th September, 

2024 (both days inclusive)

4. Dividend Payment Date: Not applicable

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Stock Code

6. Exclusive E-mail Id For Communication of Investors’ Grievances

sm@masserv.com/ shares@bhartia.com 
grievances, if any.

 NSE

Months BIL Months NSE Nifty

High 
(Rs.)

Low 
(Rs.)

Average 
(Rs.)

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Average 
(Rs.)

228.90 202.50

267.90 202.40

20222.45

254.90 227.95

407.70 20992.58

Jan-24 Jan-24

Feb-24 Feb-24 22297.50

Mar-24 246.25 Mar-24 22526.60
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 BSE

Months BIL Months S&P BSE SENSEX

High  
(Rs.)

Low 
(Rs.)

Average 
(Rs.)

High  
(Rs.)

Low  
(Rs.)

Average 
(Rs.)

202.00

264.00 200.00 64768.58

66227.67

65690.88

200.90

270.00 64842.57

278.00 226.20 67069.89

408.05

Jan-24 294.70 Jan-24

Feb-24 Feb-24 70809.84

Mar-24 Mar-24 65870.04
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8. Registrar & Share Transfer Agent :  MAS Services Ltd.

info@masserv.com

9. Share Transfer System:

10. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024.

No. of Shares
Shareholders Shareholding

Number % to total Number % to total

Upto 500 5089 2.87

42 0.76 0.85

27 0.49

27 0.49

0.59 255244 2.09

72

Total 5547 100.00 12209411 100.00

11. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2024

Category No. of Share held % of Paid-up Capital

Persons acting in concert 45.20

0.00

8.68

2220872

Directors and relatives 40025

Clearing Members 0.00

Total 12209411 100.00
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12. Dematerialization of shares and 
liquidity share

: st

13. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants 
or any convertible instruments, 
conversion date and likely impact on 
equity

: During the year under review, the Company not issued neither 
allotted warrants or any convertible instruments, which was 

14. Plant Locations :

15. Address for Correspondence :

shares@bhartiya.com

Gautam

shares@bhartiya.com

DISCLOSURES

policies and notes forming part of the Financial Statements in accordance with “IND AS”. A statement in summary form 
of transactions with Related Parties in ordinary course of business and arm’s length basis is periodically placed before 

with Related Party Transactions. The Policy is available on the website of the Company (www.bhartiya.com).

on an arm’s length or fair value basis.

Notes to the Financial Statements

practices.

code of conduct for its management and staff. The code lays down guidelines, which advises them on procedures 
to be followed and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of the Company, and cautioning them of the 

the company has implemented a Code of Practice and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information.
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Not Applicable

Not Applicable.

Financial Statements.

Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

 Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account - The Company does not have any shares in the demat 
suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

 None of the subsidiary of the Company falls within the meaning of “Material Non-listed Indian subsidiary” as designed 

same on the website of the Company (www.bhartiya.com).

 The Company monitors the performance of its subsidiary companies, inter alia, by the following means:

Meetings respectively of the Company.

 During the year under review the Company and / or its subsidiaries have not given any loan and advances whether 
directly or indirectly to Firms/ Companies in which any of the Director is interested.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

(ii) The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee.

Insider Trading Code

The object of the PIT Regulations is to curb the practice of insider trading in the securities of a listed Company.
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to have access to unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is the Compliance 

Code of Conduct

www.bhartiya.com.
compliance with the code on an annual basis and the declaration to that effect by Mr. Snehdeep Aggarwal, Chairman, is 
attached to this report.

A Code of conduct applicable to all the employees of the Group has been communicated, which are to be followed in day 

the letter and the spirit of all laws, rules, and regulations, and our company’s policies, standards, and procedures.

NSE ELECTRONIC APPLICATIONS PROCESSING SYSTEMS (NEAPS) AND BSE LISTING CENTER

SEBI COMPLAINT REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES)

SMART ODR PORTAL 

bhartiyafashion.com/invester-relations.html. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT (MDA)

MDA is attached separately in this Annual Report.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

physical form.
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Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India is 

Transfer of unclaimed / unpaid amounts / shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

application money, principal amounts of debentures and deposits as well as the interest accruing thereon, sale proceeds of 
fractional shares, redemption amount of preference shares, etc. remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years from 
the date they became due for payment.

shares.

outstanding for 7 consecutive years of the Company. Further, shares of the Company, in respect of which dividends have not 

Particulars Amount in Dividend (In Rs.) No. of Shares

Final Dividend 2015-16

Total 153,089 17,546

 
portal 

The Company strongly recommends shareholders to encash / claim their respective dividend within the period given below 
from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

Financial Year Ended Date by which unclaimed dividend amount will be credited/transferred to 
the “Investor Education and Protection Fund”

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

on unpaid/ unclaimed dividend and other unclaimed monies is also available on the Company’s website at www.bhartiya. 
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com under Investor Relations section. Those claimants who have not yet encashed their unclaimed/unpaid amounts are 

 
.

yogesh.gautam@bhartiya.com.

Dematerialization of Shares – Process

is given hereunder:

a. Demat account should be opened with a Depository Participant (DP).

DP.

e. RTA will process the DRF and update the status to DP/ Depositories.

maintained with the DP.

Nomination Facility

complete nomination form, available on the website of the Company www.bhartiya.com, to the Registrar and Share transfer 
Agent of the Company. The Members, who hold shares in the electronic form and wish to avail nomination facility, are 

Consolidation of Folios and avoidance of Multiple Mailing

In order to enable the Company to reduce costs and duplication of efforts for investor servicing, members who may have more 

all similar holdings under one folio. This would help in monitoring the folios more effectively. Members may write to the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at their address given earlier, indicating the folio numbers to be consolidated.

National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) Mandate

of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers etc., to their respective Depository Participant (DP). Changes 
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CODE OF CONDUCT DECLARATION
Declaration

st March, 2024.

Sd/-
Snehdeep Aggarwal

Gurugram, 29th May, 2024   Chairman

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

st March, 2024)

To,

st March, 2024 and that to 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

March, 2024 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed to the Auditors and 

reporting. 

For and on behalf of the Board

Gurugram, 29th May, 2024 Sd/-
Manoj Khattar

Sd/-
Raj Kumar Chawla
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members

Tamilnadu 600048.

(DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in
st 

conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS RAVI SHARMA

Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666

UDIN: F004468F000921551
New Delhi, 9th August, 2024  Peer Review Cert. No 978/2020

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORORATE  
GOVERNANCE UNDER SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Members

st

to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RSM & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
CS RAVI SHARMA

Partner
FCS: 4468 | COP No.: 3666

UDIN: F004468F000921551
New Delhi, 9th August, 2024  Peer Review Cert. No 978/2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Members of
Bhartiya International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Bhartiya International Limited (‘the Holding 
Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’) and its associate 

Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated State of Affairs of the 

Basis for Opinion

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in the other matters 

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘’Revenue’’ is recognized when Company performs 
its obligation to its customers and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the 

recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control 

management considers revenue as a key measure for 

Principal audit procedures performed:
• Assessed the Company’s revenue recognition accounting 

policies in line with the Ind AS 115 (‘’Revenue from Contracts 

• Evaluated the integrity of the general information and 
technology control environment and testing the operating 

• Evaluated the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of Company’s control in respect of revenue 

• 
the year-end

• On a sample basis, tested supporting documentation for sales 
transactions recorded during the year which included sales 

• Performed an increased level of substantive testing in respect 
of sales transactions recorded during the period closer to the 

• 
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Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Position, 
Consolidated Financial Performance (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
and Consolidated Cash Flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

 Board of 
and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the group and its associates to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

• 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

controls
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

• 

• 

 
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

Other Matters

lacs as at March 31, 2024, total revenues of Rs

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their countries and which have been audited by other 

opinion in so far as it related to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of 

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of 
section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, are based solely on the reports of 
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 

(a) 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31st, 

st, 2024 from being appointed as a 

(f) 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
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to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associates shall, directly or indirectly, 

c)  Based on the audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 

v)  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the holding Company or its subsidiaries and 

the respective auditors of the subsidiaries and associates of the Holding Company which are companies 
incorporated in India and audited under the Act, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates in 

their books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been 

of our audit we and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries and associates did not come 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar
Partner
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Annexure A 

31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the entities CIN Holding Company/ 
Subsidiary

Clause number of
the CARO report

1 Bhartiya International Ltd Holding Company Clause (i)(c)

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar
Partner
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

st, 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

policies and procedures that 

of the assets of the Company; 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all 

established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Other Matters

other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar
Partner
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

I Assets      
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5  13,813.21 
 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress  129.06  - 
 (c)  914.89 
 (d) Investment in Property  507.59 
 (e) Goodwill   25.25 
 (f) Intangible Assets  2,666.51 
 (g) Investments Accounted for using Equity Method  4,250.10 
 (h) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments  35.01 
 (ii) 10  2,125.27 
 (i)   76.06 
 (j) Other Non-Current Assets 11  63.14 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories 12  57,459.12 
 (b) Financial Assets    
 (i) Investments 13  -  - 
 (ii) 14  14,385.11 
 (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15  2,705.45 
 (iv)  4,447.68 
 (v) Loans  139.00 
 (vi) Others Financial Assets  2,989.63 
 (c)   127.52 
 (d) Other Current Assets  2,868.95 
 TOTAL ASSETS   1,09,728.55 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 1 Equity     
 (a) Equity Share Capital 20  1,220.94 
 (b) Other Equity 21  37,778.13 
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings 22  10,189.33 
 (ii) Lease Liability   447.97 
 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 23  148.26 
 (b) Provisions 24  105.78 
 (c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 25  86.32 
 (d)   844.16 
 Current Liabilities    
 (a) Financial Liabilities    
 (i) Borrowings  40,925.42 
 (ii) Lease Liability   133.24 
 (iii)   
 

enterprises
  650.55 

 
and small enterprises

  14,913.34 

 (iv) Other Financial Liabilities  1,454.88 
 (c) Provisions  187.85 
 (d) Other Current Liabilities 30  369.41 
 (e)   272.97 
 TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   1,09,728.55 
 Material Accounting Policies 4  
  1 to 51   

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Note 

No.
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2024 
 Year Ended  

31st March, 2023 
 INCOME    

 Revenue from Operations 31  77,752.21 
 Other Income 32  691.53 

 Total Income   78,443.74 
 EXPENSES    
 Cost of Material Consumed 33  36,969.63 

   8,184.55 
 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods 34  (2,847.22)
 35  6,214.96 
 Finance Costs  4,213.57 
  2,553.30 
  21,307.79 
 Total Expenses   76,596.58 
 

Associate 
  1,847.16 

   (1,153.05)
III   694.11 
   -  - 
   694.11 
 Tax expenses   
 I   614.47 
 ii   59.87 
   19.77 
 Other Comprehensive Income    
    
   2.43 
   (0.55)
 Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B)   1.88 
 Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   21.65 
    
 Owners   22.28 
 Non-controlling Interests   (2.51)
 Other Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
 Owners   1.88 
 Non-controlling Interests   -  - 
 Total Comprehensive income Attributable to :    
 Owners   24.16 
 Non-controlling Interests   (2.51)
 Earnings per equity share of face value    
 Basic (in Rupees)   0.16 

   0.16 
 Material Accounting Policies 4   
 1 to 51   

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 694.11 

Adjustment for :

 1,153.05 

Finance Cost  4,213.57 

 2,553.30 

 (1.50)

Rental Income  (250.11)

Interest income  - 

Government grant income  (4.44)

   

 8,357.98 

Movements in Working Capital:

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  6,457.73 

 (62.55)

Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities  338.35 

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  56.19 

 (5,340.23)

 (1,415.19)

 19.83 

 (896.16)

 (386.75)

 2.86 

 (14.62)

Cash (used in) / Generated from Operations  7,117.44 

 (728.57)

Currency Fluctuation reserve consolidation  189.78 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities - (A)  6,578.65 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (711.79)

Capital advance/Capital creditors (net)  (20.08)

 7.83 

Rental Income  250.11 

Interest income  - 

 (1,645.95)

Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities - (B)  (2,119.88)
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Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds of long-term borrowings (net)  (3,518.13)

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)  5,216.76 

Payment of lease Liability  (170.58)

Share Capital including securities premium  1.14  - 

Interest and processing fees paid (net)  (4,156.71)

 (2,627.52)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 
(A+B+C)

 1,831.25 

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year  874.20 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  2,705.45 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  24.19 

In current accounts  2,619.10 

In deposit accounts  62.16 

 2,705.45 

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 Bhartiya International Limited (‘the Holding Company’) is a public limited company with domiciled in India and 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of leather products 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 

 

 Based on the nature of products/activities and the time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-

3. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

 

 

 

 Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

4.2 Investment Properties

 Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by 

 

4.3 Intangible Assets

 

 

 Amortization of Intangible Assets-Brand at the overseas subsidiary are as per the rate applicable based on the 

4.4 Lease

 Company as a Lessee

(i)  Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease 

are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 

(ii)  Lease Liabilities

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present 

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

(iii)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

 Company as a Lessor

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 

to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 

4.5 Inventories

 

price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to 

4.6 Cash & Cash Equivalents

 

 
deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are considered part 

 

 

 

 

 

4.8 Financial Instruments 

 

 Financial Assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 

 • amortised cost

 

 

 Debt Instruments:

 

(a)  Measured at Amortised Cost:

 

(b)  Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 

 

 
are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if 

 Equity Instruments:

 

 

 Derecognition

 

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

 Subsequent Measurement

 

 Loans and Borrowings

 After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 

 Trade and other payable

 

 Derecognition

 

 Derivative Instruments:

 

4.9 Provision and Contingent Liabilities 

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

 

4.10 Revenue Recognition 

 

 Revenue from Services

 

 Other Operating Revenue - Export Incentives

 

 Interest Income 

 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method

 Dividend Income 

 

4.11 Foreign Currency Translation

 

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 

 

 

4.12 Income Tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 Current Tax

 

 Deferred Tax

 

 

 

 

4.13 Earning Per Share 

 

 

equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 

4.14 Borrowing Cost

 Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 

of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized 

4.15 Government Grants

 Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the 

 

 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities 

4.16 Share Based Payment 

 Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, 

4.17 Critical Estimates and Judgements -

 

 
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than 

 The areas involving Critical Estimates or Judgement are:

 

 

 

 Provision and contingent liability

 Carry value of investment in associates 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lakhs 
Particulars LAND OTHER THAN LAND  

Freehold Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         
Balance as at  
31st March, 2022
Addition -

- - -
Balance as at  
31st March, 2023

 255.70  8,274.62  8,443.14 1,466.12  198.57  499.63  320.88  19,458.66 

Addition -
- -

Balance as at  
31st March, 2024

 255.70  8,286.72  8,695.28 1,512.55  303.54  483.27  374.33  19,911.39 

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at  
31st March, 2022

 -   

Addition -
- - -

Balance as at  
31st March,2023

 -    1,195.93  2,712.65  611.76  58.05  327.14  237.75  5,143.28 

Addition -
- - -

Balance as at  
31st March, 2024

 -    1,464.07  3,272.47  731.07  42.12  309.80  278.65  6,098.18 

Net carrying amount 
Balance as at  
31st March, 2023

 14,315.38 

Balance as at  
31st March, 2024

 13,813.21 

a)   Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title deeds 
held in the 
Name of

Whether title deed 
holder is a promoter 

or director or 
Relative of Promoter 

Director

Property 
held since 

which 
date

Reason for 
not being 
held in the 

name of the 
company

PPE Building Pardeep Goyal
Registration

 Capital Work in Progress  Rs. in Lakhs

31st March, 2023  -   
31st March, 2024  129.06 

 Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress ageing 

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 
1 Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 
Year

Total

31st March, 2024      
Projects in Process  -    -    -    129.06 
31st March, 2023
Projects in Process  -    -    -    -    -   
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

5.2 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Land Building Total

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition  -    -   

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  532.34  993.63  1,525.97 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  63.20  547.88  611.08 

Net carrying amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  469.14  445.75  914.89 

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars Land & Building

Gross Carrying amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  594.85 

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  594.85 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  76.35 

Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  87.26 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  507.59 

Fair Value 

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2024 3321.15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

6.1 Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

Rental income derived from investment properties  206.48 

generating rental income
 1.67 

Income arising from investment properties before 
depreciation

 204.81 

 10.91 
Income from investment properties (Net)  193.90 

6.2 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
Not later than one year 207.38

823.42
29.00

6.3 Estimation of Fair Value

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Goodwill  Computer 
Software 

 Brand/
Patent 

 Total 

Gross Carrying Amount    
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Addition  -    -   

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Addition

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2022
Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Addition

Balance as at 31st March, 2024
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -   



78

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
Rs. in Lakhs

8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD 

Particulars  No. of 
Shares/Units 

 As at
 31st March, 2024 

 No. of 
 Shares/Units

 As at
 31st March, 2023 

Investments in Associates  
(Unquoted at Cost )

    

(a) Investment in Associate Company #  

Equity Shares 3,43,93,260 4,250.10

 4,250.10 

#Particulars of Investment in 
Associate Company 

 

A)  

% of ownership interest 36.77%

Cost of Acquisition  3,999.60 

 251.18

 4,250.78 

B)  

% of ownership interest 50.00%

Cost of Acquisition  0.50 

Surplus 
 (1.18)

 (0.68)

Total (A+B)  4,250.10 

9. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS  

Particulars  As on 31st March, 2024  As on 31st March, 2023 

 Units/ 
Share (No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

 Units/ 
Share (No.) 

 Amount 
(Rs.) 

A) Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

     

 i)  1.222  0.01 

   0.01  

B) Investments in Equity Shares (Unquoted)     

     

 i)  31,525  35.00  31,525 

 Total (A+B)   35.01 

Aggregate amount of unquoted 
Investments

  35.01  

Aggregate amount of impairment in value 
of unquoted Investments

  -   - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

 
10. OTHER NON FINANCIAL CURRENT ASSETS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 

 298.75 

(b) Other Advance  37.43 

various facilities)
 1,789.09 

TOTAL  2,125.27 

11. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Capital Advances  22.88 

 26.10 

 5.40 

(d)  Prepayment Lease Rent  8.76 

TOTAL  63.14 

12.  INVENTORIES 

(a) Raw Materials  39,594.65 

(b) Raw Materials -In transit  190.60 

(c) Stock-in-Progress  1,291.04 

(d) Finished Goods  11,326.11 

(e) Land and Land development  1,256.12 

(f) Consumable Store  3,800.60 

TOTAL  57,459.12 

13. CURRENT INVESTMENT

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

 Shares (No)  Amount (Rs)  Shares (No)  Amount (Rs) 

A) Investment In Equity Instrument (Unquoted)  

  

 i)  31,792  -    -   

  -  - 

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments   -   - 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 14,520.79 

(135.68) --

TOTAL  14,385.11 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 Years 2-3 
Years

More than 
3 Years

 Total 

Considered Good

Credit 
Impaired

Total 10,817.08 1,662.68 1,288.16 235.28  517.59  14,520.79 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

Considered Good

Total 10,462.27  1,340.58  339.02  228.90  599.15 12,969.92 

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

a) Balances with Banks   

 In current accounts  2,619.10 

 In deposit accounts  62.16 

b) Cash on Hand  24.19 

TOTAL  2,705.45 

16. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 4,444.48 

 3.20 

TOTAL  4,447.68 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

17. CURRENT LOAN  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

  

(a) Loan to Employee  139.00 

TOTAL  139.00 

18. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 857.88 

 2,021.04 

c) Other Advance  24.37 

 86.34 

TOTAL  2,989.63 

19. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

a) Advances with Suppliers  2,202.59 

 624.81 

c) Mat Credit Entitlement  14.35 

d) Other Advances  27.20 

TOTAL  2,868.95 

20. SHARE CAPITAL   

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up : 

 a)   1,220.94 

TOTAL  1,220.94 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of 
Shares

Amount No. of 
Shares

Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  1,22,07,129  1,220.71 

Shares Issued during the year  2,282  0.23  -    -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  1,22,09,411  1,220.94 

 Name of the Share holders As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Holding

(a)  Snehdeep Aggarwal  11,43,362  9.36 

(b)  10,10,000  8.27  10,10,000 

(c)  30,47,100  24.96 

(d)  6,81,913  5.59 

(e)  7,06,474  5.79 

(f)  7,90,500  6.47 

 Shares Reserved for issue under options 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 - 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars 31st 
March 
2024

31st 
March 
2023

31st 
March 
2022

31st 
March 
2021

31st 
March 
2020

under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) wherein part 

 -    500 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
 Share held by promoter at 31st March, 2024

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change during 
the year

Snehdeep Aggarwal  - 

Ramesh Bhatia 3,40,250  - 

Promoters Group

Arjun Aggarwal  - 

Kanwal Aggarwal  - 

50,000  - 

Parushni Aggarwal  - 

Pawan Aggarwal 5,000  - 

 - 

10,10,000  - 

 - 

30,000  - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

22. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

Secured   

 10,049.87 

 139.46 

TOTAL  10,189.33 

Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

secured by First Charge on the commercial property situated 

Repayable in 40 Quarterly Installment starting from 
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Nature of security and terms of repayment for long term secured borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

and Cash Flows, receivables, book debts and revenue of the year end

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 148.26 

TOTAL  148.26 

24. NON-CURRENT PROVISION 

 105.78 

TOTAL  105.78 

25. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

(a) Government Grant  43.68 

(b) Advance Lease Rent  42.64 

TOTAL  86.32 

26. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

   - Working Capital Loans From Banks  34,974.83 

   - Current Maturity of Long term borrowing  5,950.59 

TOTAL  40,925.42 

27. TRADE PAYABLE

(a) Acceptances  4,433.27 

(b) Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises  650.55 

(c) Payable to others than Micro and Small Enterprises  10,480.07 

TOTAL  15,563.89 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars  Outstanding for following period from due date of 
payment 

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
than 3 
Years 

 Total 

 -   

 Others 

15,563.89  -    -    -   15,563.89 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More 
than 3 
Years 

 Total 

Others  -    -   -

Total Trade Payable  9,106.16  -    -   -  9,106.16 

28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES    

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

(a) Interest Accrued  120.94 

 3.20 

 463.10 

 258.69 

 198.14 

(f) Capital Payables  3.71 

(g) Other Payable  11.56 

 395.54 

TOTAL  1,454.88 

29. PROVISIONS

 187.85 

TOTAL  187.85 

30. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Advance from Customer  359.61 

(a) Advance Lease Rent  9.80 

TOTAL  369.41 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

Sales of Products   

(a) Sales Manufactured Goods 63,568.32

(b) 11,982.15

Sales of Services  63.79 

Other Operating Revenues  

(a)  2,025.13 

(b)  112.82 

TOTAL  77,752.21 

31.1 

Revenue as per contracted price  75,677.65 

 63.39 

Total Revenue from contract with customers  75,614.26 

32. OTHER INCOME    

 - Rental Income  250.11 

 - Other Income  31.74 

 - Bad debt Recovered  408.65  -   

TOTAL  691.53 

33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  

Opening Stock  41,090.84 

 39,462.64 

  80,553.48 

 43,583.85 

MATERIALS CONSUMED  36,969.63 

34. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

(a) Opening Inventories

  - Finished Goods 9,036.33

  - Work in Progress  735.61 

(b) Closing Inventories 

 - Finished Goods  11,328.12 

 - Work in Progress  1,291.04 

Decrease/(Increase)  (2,847.22)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars  Year Ended   
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended   
31st March, 2023 

 5,404.26 

 387.60 

 423.10 

TOTAL  6,214.96 

36. FINANCE COST

 3,848.27 

(b) Borrowing Cost  250.12 

(c) Interest on Lease Liability  56.87 

 58.31 

TOTAL  4,213.57 

37. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

 1,071.65 

(b) Amortisation on Intangible Assets  1,328.99 

 10.91 

(d) Amortisation on Right of use Assets  141.75 

TOTAL  2,553.30 

38. OTHER EXPENSES   

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  12,788.50 

 438.98 

 71.43 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

(a) Legal And Professional Charges  1,316.64 

 485.63 

(c) Bank Charges  1,030.78 

 - Building  56.72 

 261.72 

 - Others  674.47 
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Particulars  Year Ended   
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended   
31st March, 2023 

(e) Communication  105.76 

 97.63 

(g) Insurance  335.46 

(h) Rent  251.14 

 1,319.87 

 754.31 

 50.98 

 (1.50)

 595.33 

 27.08 

 7.50 

 205.99 

 369.57 

(r) Auditors Remuneration  63.80 

TOTAL  21,307.79 

39. TAX EXPENSES

I) Current Tax   

 614.47 

  614.47 

II) Deferred Tax   

 59.87 

 674.34 

97.15%

 A reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory 

 694.11 

Statutory income tax rate 25.168%

 174.69 

 33.25  -   

181.02

 290.20 

 (11.64)

6.82

674.34

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

40.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

i) Letter of Credit / Import Bills  outstanding  -  4,357.05 
ii)  757.59 
iii) Standby Letter of credit (SBLC) issued by company  bankers   

in favour of the bankers of its subsidiaries 
 6,133.80 

iv) Corporate Guarantee given by the company to a bank  
against facilities granted by that bank to its wholly owned 

 135.05 

v)  56.60 
vi)  81.07 
vii)  87.19 
viii)  -   

41. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 
 i) 

capital Account and not provided for 
 3,379.00 

 ii)
capital account 

19.24

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

the proposal of allotting of 12,01,000 warrants to promoter’s group company, subject to the approval of shareholders at 

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS     

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

contribution plans is given below:
  

a) Provident Fund*  252.63 
b) Employees State lnsurance Corporation  9.45 

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
6.95%

6.95 -7.25%
Salary increase rate 5.00%
Employee turnover 5.00%
In service mortality IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

are as follows:                                                                                  
               Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Current Service Cost  72.75 

 4.53 

Past Service Cost  -    -   

 77.28 

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligation for the year  35.47 

Return On Plan Assets  (38.32)

Net(Income)/Expenses for the year ended  (2.85)

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of 

Particulars Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

 603.90 

 (534.01)

Obligation
 69.89 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 522.04 

Interest Cost  4.53 

Current Service Cost  72.75 

Past Service Cost  -    -   

 (30.89)

Actuarial (gains)/ Losses  35.47 

 603.90 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

v) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 466.08 

Interest Income  29.61 

Contribution by the Employer  -    -   

 38.32 

 534.01 

* Fund Managed by the approved Insurance Company Kotak Life Insurance

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Investment With Insurer 100.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Effect of Increase/decrease in discount rate  

Effect of Increase/decrease in salary escalation  

44. EARNING PER SHARE     

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 19.77 

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  1,22,07,129 

Equity allotted during the year  2,282  -   

Weighted average shares (B)  1,334  -   

 1,22,08,463 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 -   

Weighted average number of equity share for diluted earning per share  1,22,08,463 

Basic earning per share  0.16 

 0.16 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

45. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG)

46. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

 Rs. in Lakhs

Grant Date April 5, 2018

April 05, 2020 April 05, 2021 April 05, 2022

%age of vesting

Grant Date February 03, 2018

February 03, 2020 February 03, 2021 February 03, 2022

%age of vesting

Grant Date December 31, 2015

%age of vesting

 

Grant Date September 16, 2015

%age of vesting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Grant Date January 28, 2014

1st February, 2015 1st March, 2015

%age of vesting

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period 20,751

Number of options granted during the year  -    -   

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year  18,469.00  -   

Number of options vested during the year  -    -   

 2,282.00  -   

 2,282.00  -   

directly by the company
 Rs. 114100  -   

NA NA

Number of options outstanding at the end of the year  -   

 -   

-

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 3, 2018 April 5, 2018
Weighted average share price

Option life (comprising of 
weighted average of vesting 

Risk free rate of return

47 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT   

 The following methods and assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

instruments by valuation techniques.

-
tions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 14,385.11  -    -   14,385.11 

 2,705.45  -    -    2,705.45 

Other bank balance  4,447.68  -    -    4,447.68 

Loans  139.00  -    -    139.00 

 5,114.90  -    -    5,114.90 

At FVTPL

Investments  35.01 - 0.01  35.00 

 -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings  51,114.75  -    -   51,114.75 

Lease Liability  581.21 

 15,563.89  -    -   15,563.89 

 1,207.60  -    -    1,207.60 

At FVTPL

 395.54  -    395.54  -   
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     
At Amortised Cost     

 -    -   
 -    -   

Other bank balance  -    -   
Loans  -    -   

 -    -   
At FVTPL
Investments  -   

 -    -    -    -   
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings  -    -   

 -    -   
Lease Liability

 -    -   
At FVTPL

 -    -   
48. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all 

-

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

Borrowings (long-term and short-term, including current maturities of  51,114.75 

 (2,705.45)
Net Debt  48,409.30 
Equity Share Capital  1,220.94 
Other Equity  37,778.13 
Total Capital  38,999.07 
Capital and Net Debt  87,408.37 
Gearing Ratio 55.38%

 In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it 

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

49. DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE III TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, OF THE ENTERPRISES 
CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATES :                                                                Rs. in Lakhs

Name of the Entities Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 
minus Total Liabilities

As a % of 
Consolidated 

net assets

Amount As a % of 
Consolidated 

Amount

Parent :
Subsidiary :
Indian Subsidiaries  -   
Bhartiya Global Marketing Ltd

Bhartiya International Sez Ltd
Bhartiya Fashion Retail Ltd 

Foreign Subsidiaries

Sub Total
Inter-company Elimination & Consolidation 
Adjustments
Grand Total
Non-Controlling Interest in subsidiaries

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

 Credit Risk

 Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, invest-
-

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

10817.08

3568.03

Liquidity Risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

Borrowing (Including current maturity of long term 
borrowing)

 40,925.42 10,189.33  -    51,114.75 

 15,563.89  15,563.89 

Lease Liabilities  133.24  397.21  50.76  581.21 

Other Financial Liabilities  1,603.14  1,603.14 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)

Lease Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -   

Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 51,114.75 

% of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest 90.31%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 461.64 

 461.64 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Foreign Currency Risk Management  

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 114.71  499.76 

 20.47  31.98 

GBP  30.45  2.03 

 274.16  54.92 

RMB  12.61  7.75 

CHF  118.47  44.76 

 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

currencies, which is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary Assets     

 478.20  (478.2)

 92.20  (92.2)

GBP  160.10  (160.1)

 145.90  (145.9)

RMB  7.30  (7.3)

CHF  533.60  (533.6)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary Liabilities  

 (2,083.37)  2,083.37 

 (143.96)  143.96 

GBP  (10.67)  10.67 

 (29.22)  29.22 

RMB  (4.47)  4.47 

CHF  (201.60)  201.60 

end of reporting year
 (1,056.11)  1,056.11 
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 Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Forwards Contracts USD  73.29 

EURO  64.59 
GBP  -   GBP

51. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24
a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship: Country Ownership Interest 

 i) Associate parties :
 India 
 India 50%

 ii) Executive Directors:
Manoj Khattar
Amrishpal Singh
Nikhil Aggarwal
Walter willi Zwahlen

 iii) Non-Executive Directors
Snehdeep Aggarwal
Ramesh Bhatia

Sandeep Seth

Shashank

Navkiran Singh Ghei

Mukul Harmilapi

 iv) 
Executive Directors or their relatives :

 v) Trust
Bhartiya International Limited Employees Group Gratuity Scheme
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 b) Transactions during the year with related parties :

1. Sales

 - 

2. Other Income

 0.78 

 3. Salaries

Manoj Khattar  91.42 

Amrishpal Singh  3.00 

Nikhil Aggarwal 43.54

Walter willi Zwahlen 60.82

 4. Lease Rent Received

 18.00 

 5. Other Expenses

 0.06 

 6. Legal and Professional Fees

 0.60 

 104.81 

Snehdeep Aggarwal  9.00 

Mukul Harmilapi  8.71 

 - 

 8. Sitting Fee

Ramesh Bhatia  - 

 - 

Sandeep Seth  - 

Shashank  - 

 - 

 2.22 

Navkiran Singh Ghei  2.22 

 0.83 

 2.22 
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Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

c) Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Trade Payable

 - 

2. Trade Receivable

 24.36  - 

3. Expenses/Others Payables

Amrishpal singh  0.23 

Snehdeep Aggarwal  0.68 

4. Security Deposit (Received)

 1.50 

As per our report of even date attached
For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD).

Rs. in Lakhs
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Members of 
Bhartiya International Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Bhartiya International Limited (‘the 

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition: Principal audit procedures performed:
• 

• 

• 

• 
the year-end

• 
transactions recorded during the year which included sales 

• 
sales transactions recorded during the period closer to the year 

• 
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Information Other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Responsibilites of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

In 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
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regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

st

st
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otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

(b)  

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.

S.K. Poddar
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

st 

  

(b) 

(c) 

Description 
of Property

Gross 
carrying 

value

Held in the 
name of

Whether 
promoter, director 
of their relative of 

employee

Period held Reason for 
not being held 

in name of 
company

Yes

(d) 

(e) 

II  (a)  

 

 (b)  

III 

         
 Aggregate amount of guarantee provided during the year

 Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date – 31 March 2024
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IV 
the Company, t

 

(a)  In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 

Nature of the 
statute

Nature of dues Forum where 
Dispute is Pending

Period to 
which the 
Amount 
Relates 

Amount in Rs.

Commissioner level

VIII 
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applicable 
in the standalone  

XIV (a)  

XV 

XVI 
 

any CICs

XVII 

XVIII 

XIX 

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 



113

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

XX 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.

S.K. Poddar
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Bhartiya International Limited”
st 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
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Opinion 

for Sushil Poddar & Co.

S.K. Poddar
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

I Assets      
 1 Non - Current Assets    
 (a)  12,376.44 
 (b)  129.06  - 
 (c)  770.95 
 (d)  502.67 
 (e)  39.02 
  6,576.09 
 (g)    
 (i) Investments  0.01 
 (ii)  2,011.48 
 (h)  52.59 
 2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories  55,759.44 
 (b)    
 (i) Investments  -  - 
 (ii)  10,318.23 
 (iii)  552.32 
 (iv)  4,447.68 

 (v)  1,002.97 
 (vi)  2,631.94 
 (c)   125.56 
 (d)  2,313.38 
  TOTAL ASSETS   99,609.83 
II Equity and Liabilities    
 Equity     
 (a)  1,220.94 
 (b)  32,488.82 
 2 Liabilities    
    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  8,810.34 
 (ii)   286.59 
 (iii)  108.86 
 (b)  41.52 
 (b)  86.32 
 (c)  844.16 
 3 Current Liabilities    
 (a)    
 (i) Borrowings  39,576.20 
 (ii)   110.06 
 (iii)   
 

small enterprises
  360.17 

 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

  13,678.05 

 (iv)  1,213.29 
 (b)  142.14 
 (c)  369.41 
 (d)   272.96 
  TOTAL OF EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   99,609.83 

 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

INCOME    

 66,094.66 

Other Income  265.62 

Total Income   66,360.28 

EXPENSES    

 36,914.72 

  13.43 

 (2,735.30)

 4,756.45 

Finance Costs  3,929.80 

 1,047.57 

 20,045.56 

Total Expenses   63,972.23 

  2,388.05 

Tax Expenses   

i  

ii  

  1,758.60 

Other Comprehensive Income    

   

 

 

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (B)   7.36 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (A+B)   1,765.96 

Earnings per equity share of Face Value    

 

 

statements
  

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

A  Equity Share Capital Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Notes Amount

 -   

B  Other Equity (Refer Note 20)

Particulars  Application 
Money 

Pending for 
allotment 

 Employee 
Stock 

Options 
Outstanding  

 Reserves and Surplus Total

 Preferential 
Share 

Warrant  
Forfeited 

Securities 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve  

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Other 
Comprehensive 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  -    89.43  925.75 7,859.24 3,517.36 16,688.24  58.90 29,138.92 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -    89.43  925.75 7,859.24 3,517.36 18,305.50  24.67 30,721.95 

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    -    925.75 7,869.99 3,596.95 20,064.10  32.03 32,488.82 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 2,388.05 

Adjustment for :

Finance Cost  3,929.80 

 1,047.57 

 (1.50)

 (250.11)

 (4.44)

   

 7,109.37 

Movements in working capital:

 4,854.30 

 (53.54)

 348.14 

 30.78 

 (5,229.45)

 (1,865.85)

 114.71 

 (928.77)

 (81.88)

 0.02 

 (33.22)

 4,264.61 

 (699.62)

 3,564.99 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 (688.44)

 (23.79)

 7.83 

 (0.78)

 250.11 

 (1,645.95)

 (2,101.02)
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Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 (2,685.20)

 5,359.63 

 (132.33)

 -  - 

Share Capital including securities premium  1.14  - 

 (3,890.67)

 (1,347.43)

(A+B+C)
 116.54 

 435.78 

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the end of the year  552.32 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash on hand  18.04 

In current accounts  534.28 

 552.32 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 

 

 

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

 

 

 

3.2 Investment Properties

 

 

3.3 Intangible Assets

 Computer Software

 

 Amortisation Method and Useful Life

 

3.4 Lease

 

 

 Company as a Lessee
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

(i)  Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

 

 

(ii)  Lease Liabilities

 

payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest 

 

(iii)  Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 

 Company as a Lessor

 

3.5 Investment In Subsidiaries And Associates

 

3.6 Inventories
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

3.7 Cash & Cash Equivalents

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in 

3.9 Financial Instruments 

 

 Financial Assets

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Debt Instruments

 

(a)  Measured at Amortised Cost:

 

(b)  Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 

 Equity Instruments:

 

 

 Derecognition

 

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 

 Subsequent Measurement

 

 Loans and Borrowings

 

 

 Trade and Other Payable

 

 Derecognition

 

 Derivative Instruments

3.10 Provision and Contingent Liabilities
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 

3.11 Revenue Recognition

 

 

 Revenue from Services

 

 Other Operating Revenue - Export Incentives

 

 Interest Income

 

 Dividend Income

 

3.12 Foreign Currency Translation

 

 Transactions and Balances

 

 

 

 

3.13 Income Tax

 

 Current Tax

 

 Deferred Tax
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

 

 

3.14 Earning Per Share

 

 

3.15 Borrowing Cost

 

3.16 Government Grants

 

 

 

 

3.17 Share Based Payment

 

 

3.18 Critical Estimates and Judgements

 

 

 The Areas involving Critical Estimates or Judgement are:
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Freehold 
Land

Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Total

Gross Carrying Amount         
Balance as at 31st March, 2022

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  223.25  7,752.87  7,672.01  454.75  193.92  470.88  316.11 17,083.79 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  223.25  7,752.87  7,919.58  505.08  297.37  449.70  368.91 17,516.76 
Accumulated Depreciation

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -    1,050.62  2,423.92  232.24  96.96  309.64  235.86  4,349.24 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    1,296.65  2,936.29  268.52  73.41  289.63  275.82  5,140.32 
Net carrying amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  223.25  6,456.22  4,983.29  236.56  223.96  160.07  93.09 12,376.44 

a)   Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

Relevant line 
item in the 

Balance Sheet

Description 
of item of 
Property

Gross 
Carrying 

Value

Title deeds 
held in the 
Name of

Whether title deed 
holder is a promoter 

or director or 
Relative of Promoter 

Director

Property 
held since 

which 
date

Reason for 
not being 
held in the 

name of the 
company

Building

4.1 Capital Work in Progress 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  129.06 

4.1.1 Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress ageing 

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 
Year

1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 
Year

Total

31 March, 2024      

 -    -    -    129.06 

31 March, 2023      

 -    -    -    -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

4.2 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Carrying amount 

 -   
 -    -   

 -    -   
 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  532.34  740.80  1,273.14 

 -    -    -   

 -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  63.19  439.00  502.19 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  469.15  301.80  770.95 

5. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars Buildings Total
Gross Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  589.92  589.92 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  589.92  589.92 
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  76.34  76.34 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  87.25  87.25 
Net Carrying Amount 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  502.67  502.67 
Fair Value 
As at 31st March, 2023
As at 31st March , 2024 2855.80 2855.80
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

5.1 Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

 205.48 

generating rental income
 1.67 

Income arising from investment properties before 
depreciation

 207.15 

 10.91 
Income from investment properties (Net)  196.24 

5.2 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments to be received in aggregate & each of following year:
Particulars As at 

31st March, 2024 
As at 

31st March, 2023 
206.38
819.42

-
5.3 Estimation of Fair Value

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Computer 
Software

Total

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  353.21 

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  360.13 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  305.16 

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  321.11 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  39.02 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

7. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDARIES AND ASSOCIATES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

Shares(Nos)  Amount Shares(Nos)  Amount 

A INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES     

 i.   Equity Instrument at Cost (Unquoted)     

  49,99,020  499.90 

 1,20,69,230 1,206.92 

  5,00,000  50.00 

  50,000  5.00 

  1,000  337.86 

 

  7,09,000  478.14 

     

 Total (A)  2,577.82 

 B  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES     

 i. Equity Instrument at Cost (Unquoted)     

 3,43,93,260 3,999.60 

   5,000  0.50 

  Total (B) 4,000.10 

  Total (A+B)  6,577.92 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
before impairment

 6,577.92 

 Less: Provision for diminution in value of 
investment 

  1.83 

 Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 
after impairment

6,576.09 

8. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

 Units(No.)  Amount  Units(No.)  Amount 

 Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)     

     

 i)  1.222  0.01 

 TOTAL   0.01  

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   0.01  

Aggregate amount of impairment in Value of 
unquoted Investments

  -   - 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

9. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS    Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 

 222.39 

  1,789.09 

TOTAL  2,011.48 

10. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 22.88 

 25.00 

 4.71 

TOTAL  52.59 

11. INVENTORIES

 39,328.15 

 190.60 

 1,291.04 

 11,151.05 

(e) Consumable Store  3,798.60 

TOTAL  55,759.44 

12. CURRENT INVESTMENTS 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

 Shares (No) Amount  Shares (No) Amount 

a) Investment In Equity Instrument (Unquoted)     

  

 i)  31,792  -    -   

 Total - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments   -   - 



132

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

(Unsecured, considered good)  

8,536.17

(refer no. 55)  1,917.74 

(135.68) -

TOTAL  10,318.23 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

-

Impaired

Total 5,779.76  4,026.65  75.97  111.00  5.34 455.19 10,453.91

Trade receiable ageing schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due Less than 
6 Months

6 Months 
- 1 Year

1-2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than 3 
Years

 Total 

 -   

Total 4,869.44  2,691.56  129.59  -    162.64  599.15  8,452.38 

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

a) Balances with Banks   

       In current accounts  534.28 

 18.04 

TOTAL  552.32 

15. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 4,444.48 

 3.20 

TOTAL  4,447.68 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

16. CURRENT LOAN   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

(Unsecured & Considered Good)   

 886.64 

(refer note no. 55)

 116.33 

TOTAL  1,002.97 

17. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 857.88 

 1,746.82 

 -   

 27.24 

TOTAL  2,631.94 

18. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 1,905.74 

 407.58 

 0.04  -   

 0.02 

 TOTAL  2,313.38 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

19. SHARE CAPITAL  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

Authorised Share Capital   

 a)   2,000.00 

 b)   500.00 

  2,500.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up :   

 a)   1,220.94 

TOTAL  1,220.94 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

 No. of Shares Amount  No. of Shares Amount

 1,22,07,129  1,220.71 

Shares Issued during the year  2,282  0.23  -    -   

 1,22,09,411  1,220.94 

 

Name of the Share holders As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

No. of 
Shares

% of 
Holding

 (a)  11,43,362  9.36 

 (b)  10,10,000  8.27 

 (c)  30,47,100  24.96 

 (d)  6,81,913  5.59 

 (e)  7,06,474  5.79 

 7,90,500  6.47 

 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 - 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

 

Particulars 31st 
March, 

2024

31st 
March, 

2023

31st 
March, 

2022

31st 
March, 

2021

31st 
March, 

2020

 -   

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change during 
the year

 - 

 - 

Promoters Group

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

21. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

Secured   

 8,679.32 

 131.02 

TOTAL  8,810.34 

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Long Term Secured Borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

secured by First Charge on the commercial property situated 
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Nature of Security and terms of repayment for Long Term Secured Borrowings:

Nature of Security Terms of Repayment

22. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 108.86 

TOTAL  108.86 

23. NON-CURRENT PROVISION   

 41.52 

TOTAL  41.52 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

24. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITY   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 43.69 

 42.63 

TOTAL  86.32 

Deferred Tax Liabilities   

 971.15 

 2.48  -   

Deferred Tax Assets

 (34.15)  -   

 (95.32)

TOTAL  844.16 

26. CURRENT BORROWING

Secured   

 34,879.78 

 4,696.42 

TOTAL  39,576.20 

27. TRADE PAYABLE  

(a)  4,433.27 

 8,274.75 

 970.03 

(refer note no 55)

 360.17 

TOTAL  14,038.22 



140

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

 360.17 

 -    -   

the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

 -    -   

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed 
 -    -   

each accounting year
 47.31  -   

in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
 -    -   

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars  Outstanding for following period from Due Date of Payment 

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More than 
3 Years 

 Total 

 -   

 Others  -    -   

13,591.40  -    -    446.82  14,038.22 

Trade Payable ageing Schedule for the Year Ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

Less than 
1 Years

 1-2 Years  2-3 Years  More than 
3 Years 

 Total 

Others

 -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

28. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

(a)  120.94 

(b)  3.20 

(c)  346.36 

(d)  172.90 

(e)  171.16 

Capital Creditors   -   

(g)  3.19 

(h)  395.54 

TOTAL  1,213.29 

29. PROVISIONS

 142.14 

TOTAL  142.14 

30. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 359.61 

 9.80 

TOTAL  369.41 

31. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

Sales of Products   

(a)  63,654.58 

(b) Stock-in-trade  23.79 

Other Operating Revenues 

(a)  2,025.13 

(b)  391.16 

TOTAL  66,094.66 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

 63,741.76 

 63.39 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  63,678.37 

Revenue by Location of Customers

India  4,422.05 

Outside India  59,256.32 

Total Revenue from Contract with Customers  63,678.37 

32. OTHER INCOME

 250.11 

 - Other Income  15.51 

TOTAL  265.62 

33. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock  40,823.20 

 39,408.87 

  80,232.07 

 43,317.35 

 MATERIALS CONSUMED  36,914.72 

34. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

(a) Opening Inventories 

 8,971.18 

 735.61 

(b) Closing Inventories 

 11,151.05 

 1,291.04 

 (2,735.30)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

35. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 4,235.20 

 258.36 

 262.89 

TOTAL  4,756.45 

36. FINANCE COST

 3,582.24 

(b) Borrowing Cost  250.12 

 39.13 

 58.31 

TOTAL  3,929.80 

37. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

 904.24 

 15.95 

 10.91 

 116.47 

TOTAL  1,047.57 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
38. OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

(I) Manufacturing Expenses   

(a) Fabrication Charges  12,092.56 

 388.21 

 71.43 

   

(II) Selling & Administrative Expenses   

 1,276.34 

 284.16 

(c) Bank Charges  962.90 

     - Building  56.72 

 199.23 

     - Others  617.90 

(e) Communication  65.77 

 68.30 

(g) Insurance  272.76 

 137.68 

 1,089.48 

 714.72 

 788.66 

 (1.50)

 350.08 

 27.08 

 7.50 

 205.98 

 369.60  -   

TOTAL  20,045.56 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
39. TAX EXPENSES

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

I) Current Tax   

 583.82 

II) Deferred Tax   

 45.63 

and loss
 629.45 

26.36%

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

 2,388.05 

Statutory income tax rate (%)  25.17 

 601.02 

 33.25  -   

 (11.64)

 6.82 

account
 629.45 

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024 

 As at  
31st March, 2023 

i)  4,357.05 

ii)  757.59 

iii) 

 6,133.80 

iv)  135.05 

 v)  56.60 

 vi)  81.07 

 vii)  87.19 

 viii)  -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

41. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2024

 As at  
31st March, 2023

 i)  3,379.00 

 ii)
capital account  

19.24

42. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
 

43. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS   

Particulars For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

contribution plans is given below:
  

 225.74 
 8.19 

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity

As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

6.95%
6.95%

Salary increase rate 5.00%
5.00%

In service mortality IALM (2012-14)

are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity
For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Current Service Cost  65.03 
 0.60 

 -    -   
 65.63 

 28.48 
 (38.32)

recognized in OCI
 (9.84)
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

iii) The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of 

Particulars Gratuity

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 571.97 

 (530.45)

Obligation
 41.52 

iv) 

Particulars Gratuity

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 479.14 

Interest Cost  30.21 

Current Service Cost  65.03 

 -   

 (30.89)

 28.48 

 571.97 

v) Movements in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets are as follows:

 462.52 

Interest Income  29.61 

 -    -   

 38.32 

 530.45 

 * Fund Managed by the approved Insurance Company Kotak Life Insurance

Investment With Insurer 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

44. EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 1,758.60 

No. of share at the beginning of the year (A)  1,22,07,129 

 2,282  -   

Weighted average shares (B)  1,334  -   

 1,22,08,463 

Effect of diluted number of share 

 -   

share
 1,22,08,463 

Basic earning per share  14.40 

 14.40 

45. EXPORT PROMOTION CAPITAL GOODS (EPCG) 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
46. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Grant Date April 5, 2018

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV

Vesting date

Grant Date February 03, 2018

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III Vesting IV

Vesting date

Grant Date December 31, 2015

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III

Vesting date

 

Grant Date September 16, 2015

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II Vesting III

Vesting date

 

Grant Date January 28, 2014

Vesting tranche Vesting I Vesting II

Vesting date
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
 

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

20,751

 -    -   

 18,469  -   

-  -   

 2,282  -   

 2,282  -   

implemented directly by the company
 Rs. 1,14,100  -   

 -    -   

NIL

NIL

Date of Grant September 16, 2015 December 31, 2015 February 03, 2018 April 5, 2018

Weighted average share price

47. DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENDITURE

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 29.07 

 27.08 

 1.99 

 -    -   

 -    -   

 N.A 

Sanitation Sanitation 

 NIL 

(i) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by  N.A 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

48. SEGMENT REPORTING DISCLOSURE 

49. 

50. PAYMENT TO AUDITOR ( INCLUDED IN LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES )

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 25.00 

 7.50 

 1.85 

 4.00 

 0.75 

51. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

 The following Methods and Assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values:

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of Financial 
instruments by Valuation Techniques.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 10,318.23  -    -    10,318.23 

 552.32  -    -    552.32 

Other Bank Balance  4,447.68  -    -    4,447.68 

 1,002.97  -    -    1,002.97 

 4,643.42  -    -    4,643.42 

At FVTPL     

Investments  0.01  0.01  -    -   

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

Borrowings  48,386.54  -    -    48,386.54 

 396.65  396.65 

 14,038.22  -    -    14,038.22 

 926.61  -    -    926.61 

At FVTPL

 395.54  -    395.54  -   

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 -    -   

 -    -   

Other Bank Balance  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

At FVTPL     

Investments  -    -   

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

Borrowings  -    -   

 -    -   

 -    -   

At FVTPL

 -    -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

52. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 48,386.54 

 552.32 

Net Debt  47,834.22 

 1,220.94 

 32,488.82 

Total Capital  33,709.76 

Capital and Net Debt  81,543.98 

Gearing Ratio 58.66%

53. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Credit Risk

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 5,779.76 

 4,026.65 

 511.82 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Liquidity Risk

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)
 39,576.20  8,810.34  -    48,386.54 

 14,038.22  -    -    14,038.22 

 110.06  264.58  22.01  396.65 

 1,322.15  1,322.15 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond  
5 year

Total

borrowing)

 -    -   

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk 

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 48,386.54 

94.56%

Interest Rate Sensitivity

 457.57 

 457.57 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Foreign Currency Risk Management

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

 Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities 

 114.71  499.76 

 5.20  25.27 

 30.45  2.03 

 0.15  0.20 

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

 478.20  (478.20)
 23.41  (23.41)

 160.11  (160.11)
 0.08  (0.08)

 (2,083.00)  2,083.00 
 (113.73)  113.73 

 (10.67)  10.67 
 (0.11)  0.11 

reporting year
 (1,545.71)  1,545.71 

Disclosure Regarding Derivative Instruments.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Currency Foreign 

Currency Lacs
Forwards Contracts USD  73.29 
 EURO  64.59 
 GBP  -   
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
54. RATIOS

Ratio Numerator Denominator 2023-24 2022-23 Variance Resaon

term borrowing

year

(e) Inventory turnover 
ratio, Sold

turnover ratio, 

turnover ratio, to vendor 

credit period 
to company

ratio, 
(Current assets-
current liabilities)

employed, 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

55. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER IND AS 24   Rs. in Lakhs

a) Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship:  Country  Ownership Interest
i) Subsidiary Companies :

 India 
 India 
 India 
 India 
 India 

 Italy 

 China 

ii) Associate parties :
 India 
 India 

iii) Executive Directors:

iv) Non-Executive Directors

Sandeep Seth

Shashank

Vivek Kapur

 v) 
Executive Directors or their relatives :

vi) Trust

Scheme



158

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL LTD.

Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 b) Transactions during the year with related parties :

1. Sales

 6.26 

 1,963.12 

 51.71 

 3.24 

2. Other Income

 57.79 

 0.78 

 - 

 1,501.99 

 89.30  - 

 - 

 4. Commission Expenses

 765.50 

 5. Salaries

 91.42 

 1.00 

 24.00 

 7. Lease Rent Received

 187.48 

 18.00 

 8. Service Charges Paid

 51.55 

 - 

 9. Other Expenses

 0.06 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
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Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

 10. Legal and Professional Fees

 0.60 

 104.81 

 9.00 

 240.00 

 - 

 11. Sitting Fee

 - 

 - 

Sandeep Seth  - 

Shashank  - 

 - 

 2.22 

 2.22 

 0.83 

Vivek Kapur  2.22 

 c)  Balances Outstanding at the year end: 

1. Advance Paid

 11.50 

2. Advance with suppliers

 802.59 

 84.04 

3. Trade Receivable

 1,615.66 

 271.11 

 6.61 

 24.36  - 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
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Particulars  2023-24  2022-23 

4. Security Deposit (Paid)

 5.00 

5. Trade Payables

 446.82 

 0.94 

 - 

 522.27 

 0.68 

7. Security Deposit (Received)

 159.79 

 1.50 

8. Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) Issued by Company Bankers

 6,133.80 

9. Corporate Guarantee given by Company

 135.05 

For SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S.K. Poddar Yogesh Kumar Gautam Raj Kumar Chawla Manoj Khattar Vivek Kapur

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

INDPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Bhartiya Global Marketing Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion

Information Other than the Financial statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

In 
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 
 

 

III 

 

IV  
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 for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

Opinion 

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

I Assets    
 1 Non - Current Assets    
  1.31 
  4.93 
  322.68 

    
  0.39 
   13.17 
 2 Current Assets    
    
  34.43 
  0.42 
   0.69 
   -  
  14.35 
  Total Assets   392.37 
II Equity And Liabilites    

 Equity     
  499.90 
  (114.52)
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
    
  0.26 
  4.71 
 3 Current Liabilities    
    
  1.56 
  0.44 
  0.02 
  Total of Equity and Liabilities   392.37 

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Manoj Khattar  Vinod Kumar Sandal 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note 
No.

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Income:    

 - 

 8.14 

Total Income   8.14 

Expenses    

 - 

 7.47 

 3.27 

Total Expenses   10.74 

  (2.60)

Tax expenses   

i   - 

ii   8.05 

  (10.65)

Other Comprehensive Income   - 

   

  - 

  

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (10.65)

Earnings per equity share of face value    

  (0.21)

  (0.21)

  

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Manoj Khattar  Vinod Kumar Sandal 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Note No.  Equity Capital (Rs) 

Equity Share Capital  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024  

    

Particulars Note No.  Retained Earning (Rs) 

Other Equity  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022   (103.62)

  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023   (103.87)

  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024   (114.52)

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Manoj Khattar  Vinod Kumar Sandal 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2024

Year Ended
31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

 (2.60)

  

 (1.00)

 (3.60)

  

 (0.12)

 0.03 

 - 

 (0.16)

Cash generated from operations  (3.85)

 - 

 (3.85)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES   

 1.00 

 1.00 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

 - 

 (2.85)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance  37.28 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance  34.43 

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Manoj Khattar  Vinod Kumar Sandal 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

b) Investment Properties

 

 

c) Investment In Subsidiaries

 

d) Inventories 

e) Cash & Cash Equivalents

f) Revenue Recognition
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NOTES (CONTD.)

 Revenue from Services

 

g) Interest Income

h) Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax

 

 

j) Foreign Currency Translation

 Transactions and Balances
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NOTES (CONTD.)

k) Provision and Contingent Liabilities

l) Financial Instruments 

 Financial Assets

 Derecognition 

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement 

 Loans and Borrowings

 Derecognition
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NOTES (CONTD.)

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Furniture
and Fixtures 

Vehicles 
Equipment 

 Computer 
Equipment 

 Total 

Gross Carrying Amount      

Cost as at 31st March, 2022

Cost as at 31st March, 2023

Cost as at 31st March, 2024  0.81  0.14  0.25  0.21  1.41 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -    0.01  0.09  -    0.10 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  0.81  0.13  0.16  0.21  1.31 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  0.81  0.13  0.16  0.21  1.31 
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTY  Rs. in Lakhs

Particular  Land 

Gross Carrying Amount  

Cost as at  31st March, 2022

Cost as at 31st March, 2023  4.93 

Cost as at  31st March, 2024  4.93 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Fair Value *

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2024 465.35

3.1

Particulars  Year Ended
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended
31st March, 2023 

 1.00 

 -   

Income arising from Investment Properties before Depreciation  1.00 

 -   

Income from Investment Properties (Net)  1.00 

3.2 Estimation of Fair Value
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

4. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As on 
31st March, 2024 

 As on 
31st March, 2023 

A  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES   

 i. Equity Instrument at Cost (Unquoted)   

  322.68 

   322.68 

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments before 
impairment

 322.68 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment  -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments after 
impairment

 322.68 

5. NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

  

 0.39 

TOTAL  0.39 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  

 12.01 

 21.97 

 0.45 

TOTAL  34.43 

7. CURRENT LOAN

 

 0.42 

TOTAL  0.42 

8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 14.35 

TOTAL  14.35 
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

9. SHARE CAPITAL    Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars  As on 
31st March, 2024 

 As on 
31st March, 2023 

Authorised Share Capital   

  500.00 

  500.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :   

  499.90 

 TOTAL  499.90 

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024

No. of Shares 

As at
31st March, 2024

Amount (Rs.) 

 As at
31st March, 2023

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023

Amount (Rs.) 

 49,99,020  499.90 

-  -   

 49,99,020  499.90 

Promoters Group  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

% of Holding 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

% of Holding 

 49,99,020  100 

Particulars   As at
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 49,99,020 

Promoter Name No.of shares at 
the beginning of 

the year

Change 
during the 

year 

No. of shares 
at the end of 

the year

% of Total 
Shares

% Change 
during the 

year

49,99,020  -   
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NOTES (CONTD.)

10. OTHER EQUITY Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Retained Earning  Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  (103.62)  (103.62)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  (103.87)  (103.87)

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  (114.52)  (114.52)

11. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

 0.26 

TOTAL  0.26 

12. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   

 4.71 

TOTAL  4.71 

13. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES     

 0.51 

 0.49 

 0.56 

TOTAL  1.56 

14. PROVISIONS   

 0.44 

TOTAL  0.44 

15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   

 0.02 

TOTAL  0.02 
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NOTES (CONTD.)

16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS   Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023

Sales of products 

 -   

TOTAL  -   

17. OTHER INCOME   

 0.03 

 1.11 

 1.00 

 6.00 

TOTAL  8.14 

18. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

 -   

 -   

 -    1.52 

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

 7.01 

 0.46 

TOTAL  7.47 

20. OTHER EXPENSES 

 0.15 

 1.67 

 0.80 

 0.40 

 0.25 

 -   

 -   

TOTAL  3.27 
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NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  Year Ended  
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended  
31st March, 2023 

21. TAX EXPENSES 

I) Current Tax   

-

II) Deferred Tax   

 8.05 

  8.05 

-309.62%

 (2.60)

Statutory income tax rate 26.00%

 (0.68)

 8.05 

 -   

 0.68 

account
 8.05 

 

 21.22 

 (8.05)

Closing balance  13.17 

22.1  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: NIL 
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

Holding Company:

Subsidiary Companies :

Key Management Personnel:

Directors

Transactions during the year with related parties

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

1 Lease Rent Received

2 Consultancy Received

vi) Balances Outstanding at the year end: 2023-24 2022-23

Security Deposit Received

Rs. in Lakhs

 Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2024

Year Ended  
31st March, 2023

 (10.65)

 49,99,020 

 (0.21)

 0.40 
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Year Ended  
31st March, 2024

Year Ended  
31st March, 2023

  

 0.46 

i)
Principal Assumptions  As at

31st March, 2024 
 As at

31st March, 2023 
7.20%
5.00%

IALM (2012-14)

ii)

Particulars For the Year Ended 
 31st March, 2024 

For the Year Ended 
 31st March, 2023 

 0.13 

 0.12 

 0.25 

 -   

 0.10 

recognized in OCI
 0.10 

iii)
 2.06 
 3.56 

obligation
 (1.50)

iv)
 1.71 
 0.13 
 0.12 
 0.10 
 2.06 

v)  

 3.56 
 -   

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets  3.56 
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NOTES (CONTD.)

 * Fund Managed by the Approved Insurance Company  Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Gratuity

 For the Year Ended 
 31st March, 2024

 For the Year Ended 
 31st March, 2023

75.39%

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars Increase effect Decrease effect

 1.97 

 2.16 

Particulars Increase effect Decrease effect

 1.63 

 1.80 

 

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

 1.00 
 4.00 

 29.00 

Fair Value Measurement  

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

 
instruments by valuation techniques.
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

 NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024 

 Carrying Amount  Level of input used in

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 34.43  -    -    34.43 

 0.42  -    -    0.42 

 0.39  0.39 

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

 1.82  -    -   1.82

     

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2023 

 Carrying Amount  Level of input used in 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

Financial Risk Management 

 Credit Risk 

 Liquidity Risk
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BHARTIYA GLOBAL MARKETING LTD

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024 

 0-1 year  1-5 year  Beyond 5 year  Total 

 1.56  -    0.26  1.82 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2023 

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

Previous 
Period 

 % of 
Variance 

Reason for 
Variance

-0.90%

84.97%

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Manoj Khattar  Vinod Kumar Sandal 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To 
The Members of 

J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

 

Basis for Opinion

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements Code of Ethics 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

th

th

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

N. Ramani

th
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

ANNEXURE- A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph number 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date 
to the members of J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LIMITED 
March, 2024)



195

J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

he company 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

N. Ramani

th
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the 
st March, 2024)

the Act. 

st March, 2024 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion 

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujam

N. Ramani

th
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

I Assets     
 1 Non - Current Assets    
  86,411.59 
  140.34 
  14,394.10 
    
  3,500.00 
  7,072.49 
  106.42 
  876.15 
   3,742.70 
 2 Current Assets    
  31,961.21 
    
  253.45 
  848.61 
  424.00 
  - 
   
  24,074.95 
  Total Assets   1,73,806.01 
II Equity And Liabilites    

 1 Equity     
  20,750.00 
  25,453.91 
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
    
  844.09 
   16,139.11 
  6,410.23 
  - 
 3 Current Liabilities    
    
  174.79 
   
   10,350.58 

   3,277.71 

   2,316.57 
  2,741.18 
  3,469.51 
   - 
  81,878.33 
  Total of Equity and Liabilities   1,73,806.01 

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujan For and an behalf of the Board

N. Ramani Amrishpal Singh Manoj Khattar 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

Year Ended
 31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

Income    
 1,79,997.88 

 3,213.93 
Total Income   1,83,211.81 
Expenses    

 5,376.38 
 1,03,826.45 

 42,667.51 
 1,876.88 

 10,099.42 
 21,372.54 

Total Expenses   1,85,219.18 
  (2,007.37)

Tax Expenses   
i   - 
ii   (424.57)

  (1,582.80)
Other Comprehensive Income    

   
  (740.47)
  192.52 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (2,130.75)

each
   

   
   

  

 
   

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujan For and an behalf of the Board

N. Ramani Amrishpal Singh Manoj Khattar 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Equity Capital

Equity share Capital (Refer Note-13)  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars Reserve and Surplus  Total 

Securities 
Premium

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Other 
Comprehensive 

Other Equity (Refer Note -14)      

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022  8,992.50  4,621.28  11,486.99  910.02  26,010.79 

 

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023  8,992.50  4,621.28  13,022.45  948.43  27,584.66 

 

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024  8,992.50  4,621.28  11,439.65  400.48  25,453.91 

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujan For and an behalf of the Board

N. Ramani Amrishpal Singh Manoj Khattar 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 (2,007.37)

 1,876.88 
 10,099.42 
 (2,400.00)

 7,568.93 
Movements in working capital:

 (3,697.09)
 261.00 

 (18,494.09)
 1,441.74 

 (85.96)
 13,345.19 

 (94.00)
 - 

 6,311.05 
 (238.80)

 (1,250.96)
 2,245.13 
 8,563.10 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 (2,885.56)

 2,400.00 
 (485.56)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 (4,016.72)

 (103.31)
 (3,825.00)
 (7,945.03)

 132.51 

 716.10 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  848.61 
Components of cash and cash equivalents:

 330.17 

 518.44 
 848.61 

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujan For and an behalf of the Board

N. Ramani Amrishpal Singh Manoj Khattar 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1. Material Accounting Policies

1.1 Corporate Information

1.2 Basis of Preparation

1.3 

 

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

1.5 Capital Work-In-Progress 

1.6 Lease
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

 Company as a Lessee

 

(i)  Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

 

 

(ii)  Lease Liabilities

 

 

(iii)  Short-term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

 

 Company as a Lessor

 

1.7 Inventories 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

1.8 Cash & Cash Equivalents

1.9 Revenue Recognition

 

 

 

 

 Revenue from Sale

 

 Interest Income 

1.10  Manufacturing and Operating Expenses

1.11  Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax

1.12 Provision and Contingent Liabilities
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

1.13 Earning per Share 

 

 

 

 

1.15 Financial Instruments 

 Financial Assets

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

 Derecognition

1.16 Intangible Assets

 Amortisation Method and Useful Life

1.17 Foreign Currency Translation

 Transactions and Balances

1.18 Government Grants

1.19  Impairment of Assets
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars LAND OTHER THAN LAND Total

Freehold Buildings Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures

Vehicles
Equipment

Computer 
Equipment 

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024 2,752.99 47,118.76 78,403.30 1,352.33 1,538.32  3,324.86  1,184.67  1,35,675.23 

Amortization and Impairment

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  -   11,063.46 34,467.75  751.29  29.92  2,005.73  945.49  49,263.64 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024 2,752.99 36,055.30 43,935.55  601.04 1,508.40  1,319.13  239.18  86,411.59 

3. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Computer 
Software 

 Total 

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  2,354.81  2,354.81 
Accumulated Depreciation

 2,214.47  2,214.47 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  2,214.47  2,214.47 
Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

4. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Building Total
Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  25,282.16  25,282.16 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  25,282.16  25,282.16 
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  8,359.84  8,359.84 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  10,888.06  10,888.06 
Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  14,394.10  14,394.10 

5. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 Share 
(No.) 

 Amount  Share 
(No.) 

 Amount 

 Investments in Equity Instrument (Unquoted)     

     

  31,525 3,500.00 

  3,500.00 

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments  3,500.00  

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Unquoted 
Investments

  -  

6. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

  

 7,072.49 

TOTAL  7,072.49 

7. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 876.15 

TOTAL  876.15 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

8. INVENTORIES   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

(Valued at Lower of cost and net realisable value)

 199.77 

 31,761.44 

TOTAL  31,961.21 

9. TRADE RECEIVABLES

 253.45 

TOTAL  253.45 

 Trade receivable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  
due date of payment

Total

Less than 
6 months

6 
months 
-1 year

1 - 2 
years

2 - 3 years More than 
3 years

 Trade receivable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from  
due date of payment

Total

Less than 
6 months

6 
months 
-1 year

1 - 2 
years

2 - 3 years More than 
3 years

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   

  

 518.44 

 330.17 

TOTAL  848.61 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

11. CURRENT LOAN   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

  

 424.00 

TOTAL  424.00 

12. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

 10.54 

 1,152.04 

 22,905.17 

 7.20 

TOTAL  24,074.95 

13. SHARE CAPITAL    

Authorised Share Capital   

  30,000.00 

  30,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :   

  20,750.00 

TOTAL  20,750.00 

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

 No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount

 2,07,500  20,750.00 

 -    -   

 2,07,500  20,750.00 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Thousand

Name of the share holders  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023 

 No. of Shares  % of Holding  No. of Shares  % of Holding

 2,07,500  100.00 

 Particulars  As at 
 31st March, 2024  

No. of Shares 

 As at 
 31st March, 2023  

No. of Shares 

 2,07,500 

14. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Securities 
Premium 

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Other 
Comprehensive 

Total

Balance as at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  8,992.50  4,621.28  13,022.45  948.43 27,584.66 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  8,992.50  4,621.28  11,439.65  400.48 25,453.91 

 Nature and Amount of Reserve
a) Securities Premium

b) Capital Reserve

15. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

Secured   

Term Loans from Bank  -   

Vehicle Loans from Bank  844.09 

TOTAL  844.09 

Nature of Security  Terms of Repayment 
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

16. NON CURRENT PROVISION   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 6,410.23 

TOTAL  6,410.23 

17. CURRENT BORROWING

 174.79 

TOTAL  174.79 

18. TRADE PAYABLES

 10,350.58 

 3,277.71 

TOTAL  13,628.29 

 Trade payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2 - 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

Total Trade Payable 13,624.85  3.44  -    -    13,628.29 

 Trade payable ageing Schedule for the year ended as on 31st March, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

Less than 
1 year

1-2 
years

2 - 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Total

Total Trade Payable 17,325.38  -    -    -    17,325.38 

 

19. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 2,741.18 

TOTAL  2,741.18 

20. CURRENT PROVISIONS

 2,687.66 

 781.85 

TOTAL  3,469.51 
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NOTES (CONTD.)

21. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 80,259.44 

 776.58 

 842.31 

TOTAL  81,878.33 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

 5,670.91 

 (68.95)

Deferred Tax Assets

 (2,197.30)

 (2,770.64)

 (740.44)

Deferred Tax Liability(Net)  (106.42)

23. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 5,622.61 

 1,74,375.27 

TOTAL  1,79,997.88 

24. OTHER INCOME

 445.68 

 -   

 2,400.00 

 283.71 

 84.54 

TOTAL  3,213.93 

25. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

 31,675.48 
 5,376.38 

   
  37,051.86 

 31,675.48 
   
 MATERIALS CONSUMED  5,376.38 
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26. MANUFACTURING & OPERATING EXPENSES Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 69,593.31 

 15,097.92 

 6,249.39 

 105.87 

 5,076.73 

 3,572.46 

 4,130.77 

TOTAL  1,03,826.45 

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES   

 38,020.80 

 2,767.86 

 1,878.85 

TOTAL  42,667.51 

28. FINANCE COSTS

 1,876.88 

TOTAL  1,876.88 

29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE  

 7,571.20 

 -   

 2,528.22 

TOTAL  10,099.42 
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30. OTHER EXPENSES  Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 4,120.74 

 47.23 

 3,599.99 

 92.15 

 1,171.61 

 217.08 

 1,226.24 

 3,508.75 

 343.49 

 1,039.61 

 4,825.50 

 550.56 

 294.59 

 205.00 

 130.00 

TOTAL  21,372.54 

31. Tax Expenses   

i) Current Tax   

 -   

 -   

 -   

   -   

ii) Deferred Tax   

 (424.57)

OCI  (192.52)

 (617.09)
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 A reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory 

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 (2,007.37)

Statutory income tax rate (%)  26.00 

 (521.92)

 97.35 

 -   

 (424.57)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS

a)

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

contribution plans is given below:
  

 2,642.40  2,396.39 

p y p  125.46  136.40 

b)

i) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as 
follows:

Principal Assumptions Gratuity

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

0.00%

6.95%

5.00%

IALM (2012-14)
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J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

ii)
plans are as follows:                                                                                      Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Gratuity

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 754.62 

 379.89 

 -   

 1,134.51 

Liability:

 688.57 

 -   

recognized in OCI
 688.57 

iii) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect 

Particulars Gratuity

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 7,192.07 

 -   

obligation
 7,192.07 

iv)

Particulars  Gratuity 

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 5,368.99 

 379.89 

 754.62 

 -   

 -   

 688.57 

 7,192.07 

v) Movements in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

NA
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vi) Sensitivity Analysis Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Increase Effect Decrease Effect

 6,870.84 

 7,542.49 

   

Particulars Increase effect Decrease effect

 5,108.04 

 5,654.73 

Movement of provision in Leave Encashment

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

 2,380.43 

 957.19 

 649.96 

 2,687.66 

33. Segment Reporting Disclosure

34. Fair Value Measurement

 The following Methods and Assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values: 
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instruments by valuation techniques.

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 253.45  -    -    253.45 

 848.61  -    -    848.61 

 424.00  -    -    424.00 

 7,072.49  -    -    7,072.49 

Financial Liabilities

 1,018.88  -    -    1,018.88 

 13,628.29  -    -    13,628.29 

 18,455.68  -    -    18,455.68 

 2,741.18  -    -    2,741.18 

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

Financial Liabilities



221

J&J LEATHER ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

35. Related Party Disclosure as per IND AS 24:

(a)  Relationship:

i)    Holding Companies

ii) Key Management Personnel:

iii) (a)   Transaction with Related Parties - Rs. in Thousand

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

 Holding  
Company

Key 
Management 

Personnel

 Holding Co Key 
Management 

Personnel

(b) Balances Outstanding at the Year End

36. EARNINGS PER SHARE  Rs. in Thousand

Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 (1,582.80)

 2,07,500.00 

 2,07,500.00 

 2,07,500.00 

100

(7.63)

(7.63)
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37. RATIO

Ratio Numerator Denominator 2023-24 2022-23 Variance Reason

38. Financial Risk Management 

 Credit Risk 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 62.28 

 191.17 
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 Liquidity Risk

 Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 
year

Total

 174.79  844.09  1,018.88 

13,628.29 13,628.29 

 2,316.57  13,262.33  2,876.78 18,455.68 

 2,741.18  2,741.18 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 
year

Total

 Market Risk

 Interest Rate Risk

 Exposure to Interest Rate Risk  Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 1,018.88 

100%

 Interest Rate Sensitivity:

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 10.19 

 10.19 
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 Foreign Currency Risk Management

 Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Assets

Foreign Currency 
Monetary Liabilities

 -   

 -    -   

 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
5% Weakened 5% Strengthen 5% Weakened 5% Strengthen

Foreign Currency Monetary 
Assets

   

 -    -   
 -    -   

Foreign Currency Monetary 
Liabilities

 -    -   
 -    -   

the end of reporting year
 -    -   

39.

40.
41.

42.

43.
44.

45.

For Padmanabhan Ramani & Ramanujan For and an behalf of the Board

N. Ramani Amrishpal Singh Manoj Khattar 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Bhartiya International SEZ Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

Basis for Opinion

Information Other than the Financial statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Board of Directors and Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

In 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

for K A S G & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R.B. Sharma
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

IV 
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Nature of the 
statute 

Nature of dues Forum where Dispute 
is Pending

Period to which the 
Amount Relates 

Amount Lacs 

income 

 

b) 
 

 

 

upto 

c)  

 
in the  

 

XV
 

 

XVI
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for K A S G & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R.B. Sharma

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Opinion 

for K A S G & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R.B. Sharma
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

I Assets    
 1 Non - Current Assets    
  873.58 
    
  90.00 
  540.00 
 2 Current Assets    
  1,25,611.59 
    
  4,012.92 
   125.60 
  787.21 
  Total Assets   1,32,040.90 
II Equity And Liabilites    
 Equity     
  1,35,692.30 
  (13,652.41)
 2  Liabilities    
 Non - Current Liabilities    
  16.35 
 3 Current Liabilities    
    
   
 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
  - 

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

  403.57 

  1,128.00 
  48.74 
  8,404.35 
  Total of Equity and Liabilities   1,32,040.90 

For K A S G & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board

R.B. Sharma Jogendra Manoj Khattar Amrishpal Singh
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

Income    

 5,155.14 

 421.63 

Total Income   5,576.77 

Expenses    

 1,053.89 

 - 

 6,799.45 

Total Expenses   7,853.34 

  (2,276.57)

Tax Expenses    

i   - 

ii   - 

  (2,276.57)

Other Comprehensive Income    

   

  (0.50)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (2,277.07)

Earnings per equity share of face value    

  (0.17)

  (0.17)

For K A S G & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board

R.B. Sharma Jogendra Manoj Khattar Amrishpal Singh
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note No.  Equity Share 
Capital (Rs) 

Equity Share Capital  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023

 

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024

    

Particulars Note No.  Retained 
Earnings (Rs) 

Other Equity  

 As at 31st March, 2022  

  

  

 As at 31st March, 2023   (11,375.34)

  

  

 As at 31st March, 2024   (13,652.41)

For K A S G & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board

R.B. Sharma Jogendra Manoj Khattar Amrishpal Singh
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particular Year Ended
31st March, 2024

Year Ended
31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
 (2,276.57)

Adjustment for :   
 - 

 (2,276.57)
Movements in working capital:   

 1.32 
 (72.61)

 (111.52)
 2,477.33 

 23.44 
 11.95 
 53.34 
 (7.87)
 45.47 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  - 
 - 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  - 
 - 

 45.47 
 3,967.45 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  4,012.92 
Components of cash and cash equivalents:   

 94.06 
 3,918.86 
 4,012.92 

For K A S G & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board

R.B. Sharma Jogendra Manoj Khattar Amrishpal Singh
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BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

 

 

 

1.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

 

 

b) Inventories

 

c) Cash & Cash Equivalents

 

d) Revenue Recognition

 Revenue from Services

 

 Interest Income

 

e) Income Tax

 

 Current Tax

 

 Deferred Tax
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f) Provision and Contingent Liabilities

 

 

 

 

 

 

h) Financial Instruments 

 

 Financial Assets

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Debt Instruments:

 

 (a) Measured at Amortised Cost:

 

(b) Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income: 
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NOTES (CONTD.)

 

 Equity Instruments:
 

 

 Derecognition
 

 Financial Liabilities
 Initial Recognition and Measurement
 

 Subsequent Measurement
 

 Loans and Borrowings
 

 

 Trade and Other Payable
 

 Derecognition
 

i) Critical Estimates and Judgements -

 

 

 The areas involving critical estimtes or judgement are:
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Buildings STP Furniture 
and 

Fixtures
Equipment

Total

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  6,291.55  1,728.67  30.94  3.70  8,054.86 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  5,573.63  1,578.07  27.49  2.09  7,181.28 

Net Carrying Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  717.92  150.60  3.45  1.61  873.58 

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  717.92  150.60  3.45  1.61  873.58 

3. OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

 90.00 

TOTAL  90.00 

4. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

 540.00 

TOTAL  540.00 

5. INVENTORIES

 1,25,611.59 

TOTAL 1,25,611.59
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NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Thousand
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

  

  649.66 

  3,269.20 

 94.06 

TOTAL  4,012.92 

7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 180.00 

 607.21 

TOTAL  787.21 

8. SHARE CAPITAL

 Authorised Share Capital   

 2,00,000.00 

  2,00,000.00 

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :   

 1,35,692.30 

 Total  1,35,692.30 

 Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2024 

Amount (Rs.) 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

Amount (Rs.) 

 1,35,69,230  1,35,692.30

 1,35,69,230  1,35,692.30 

 Name of the Share holders  As at
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2024 

% of Holding 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

% of Holding 

 1,20,69,230  88.95 

 15,00,000  11.05 
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Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023

No. of Shares 

 1,20,69,230 

Promoter Name No. of 
Shares

% of Total 
Shares

% Change 
during the year

9. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Retained Earning Total

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  (8,202.65)

 (3,172.69)

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  (11,375.34)

 (2,276.57)

 (0.50)

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  (13,652.41)

10. NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 16.35 

TOTAL  16.35 

11. TRADE PAYABLE 

 -   

 403.55 

 TOTAL  403.55 
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12. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES   Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at
31st March, 2024 

As at
31st March, 2023 

 98.31 

 771.21 

 24.09 

 234.39 

TOTAL  1,128.00 

13. PROVISIONS

 48.74 

TOTAL  48.74 

14. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 8,404.35 

TOTAL  8,404.35 

15. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 5,155.14 

TOTAL  5,155.14 

16. OTHER INCOME  

  

  225.01 

  6.40 

 190.22 

TOTAL  421.63 

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

 1,053.10 

 0.79 

TOTAL  1,053.89 
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18. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

-

TOTAL -

19. OTHER EXPENSES    

 897.34 

 30.00 

 8.82 

 197.86 

 10.72 

 6.00 

 45.00 

 4,838.51 

 65.49 

 699.21 

 0.50 

TOTAL  6,799.45 

 EARNING PER SHARE    

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 (2,276.57)

1,35,69,230

(0.17)

Particulars Current Year
Rs.

Previous Year
Rs.

Audit Fees  30.00 
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Name of Related Parties & Nature of Relationship

Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Current Year
Rs.

Previous Year
Rs.

Transactions during the year with Related Parties:

Service Charges Received

 5,155.14 

Professional Charges Paid

 870.84 

Balances Outstanding at the year end:

Advances Received

 8,404.35 

a)
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31st March, 2024
For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

p y p  0.79 
b)

Principal Assumptions As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

7.25%
5.00%

IALM (2012-14)

are as follows:
Particulars For the Year Ended 

31st March, 2024
For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

 5.29 
 0.71 

or Loss
 6.00 

  
 0.50 
 0.50 
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Rs. in Thousand
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its 

Particulars For the 
Year Ended 

31st March, 2024

For the 
Year Ended 

31st March, 2023
16.36

Particulars For the 
Year Ended 

31st March, 2024

For the 
Year Ended 

31st March, 2023
 9.86 
 5.29 
 0.71 
 0.50 

 -   
 16.36 

Sensitivity Analysis:

Particulars Increase effect Decrease effect
 14.81 

 18.13 

 8.90 

 10.97 

Fair Value Measurement:

 

 The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values:

 
instruments by valuation techniques.



246

BHARTIYA INTERNATIONAL SEZ LTD.
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Rs. in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 90.00  -    -    90.00 

4,012.92  -    -    4,012.92 

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

 403.57  -    -    403.57 

1,128.00  -    -    1,128.00 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Carrying 
Amount 

Level of input used in

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Financial Risk Management 

 Credit Risk 

 Liquidity Risk
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NOTES (CONTD.)
 

 

Particular As at 31st March, 2024

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total

 -    -    403.57 

 -    -    1,128.00 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond 5 year Total

 Market Risk

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

 Previous 
Period 

 % of 
Variance 

Reason for 
variance

-29.98%

-36.81%

-36.99%

-51.08%

For K A S G & CO.  For and on behalf of the Board

R.B. Sharma Jogendra Manoj Khattar Amrishpal Singh
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 

Bhartiya Fashion Retail Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Information Other than the Financial statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Board of Directors and Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

In 
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

IV 

 

 

income 
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(b) 
 

 

 

upto 

 

 
in the  

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
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Opinion 

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31st March, 2024

As at 
31st March, 2023

I Assets     

 1 Non - Current Assets    

    

  10.00 

 2 Current Assets    

    

  956.06 

  5.76 

   - 

 Total Assets   971.82  993.23 

II Equity And Liabilities    

 1 Equity     

  5,000.00 

  (4,093.76)

 2  Liabilities    

    

    

  65.58 

  Total of Equity and Liabilities   971.82  993.23 

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Vinod Kumar Sandal Manoj Khattar
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

Year Ended
 31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

INCOME    

 - 

 32.53 

Total Income   32.53 

EXPENSES    

 - 

 32.42 

Total Expenses   32.42 

  0.11 

Tax Expenses    

i   23.03 

ii   - 

  (22.92)

Other Comprehensive Income   -  

   

  - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (22.92)

Earnings per equity share of face value    

  (0.05)

  (0.05)

  

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Vinod Kumar Sandal Manoj Khattar
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN  EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note No.  Equity Capital

Equity Share Capital  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024  

    

Particulars Note No.  Retained Earning 

Other Equity  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2022  

  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2023   (4,070.84)

  

  

 Balance as at 31st March, 2024   (4,093.76)

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Vinod Kumar Sandal Manoj Khattar
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particular Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

 0.11 

Adjustment for :   

 0.11 

Movements in working capital:   

 - 

 (3.78)

 1.51 

 - 

 (2.16)

 (204.18)

 202.02 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Security Deposit  - 

 - 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  - 

 - 

 - 

 202.02 

 754.04 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  956.06 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:   

 23.42 

 932.64 

 956.06 

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Vinod Kumar Sandal Manoj Khattar
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

1.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Cash & Cash Equivalents

b) Revenue Recognition

 

c) Income Tax

 Current Tax

 Deferred Tax
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

 

f) Financial Instruments

 Financial Assets

 Derecognition

 Financial Liabilities

 Initial Recognition and Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 Loans and Borrowings

 Derecognition
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

2. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS Rs in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

  

 10.00  10.00 

TOTAL  10.00  10.00 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  

 182.64 

 750.00 

 23.42 

TOTAL  956.06 

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 5.76 

TOTAL  5.76 

5. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital :   

each
 5,000.00 

  5,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :   

 5,000.00 

 TOTAL  5,000.00 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

Amount (Rs.) 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

Amount (Rs.) 

 5,00,000  5,000.00

 -    -   

 5,00,000  5,000.00

Name of the Share holders  As at 
31st March, 2024

 No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

% of Holding 

 As at 
31st March, 2023

 No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023

 % of Holding 

 5,00,000  100.00 
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

 Rs in Thousand

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 5,00,000 

Name of the share holders  No. of 
Shares at the 
beginning of 

the year 

 Change 
During the 

year 

 No. of Shares 
at the end of 

the year 

 % of Total 
Shares 

 % Change 
during the 

year 

 5,00,000 

6. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars  Retained Earning  Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  (4,261.30)  (4,261.30)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  (4,070.84)  (4,070.84)

 -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  (4,093.76)  (4,093.76)

7. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

 65.58 

 TOTAL  65.58 

8. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 -   

TOTAL  -   
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

9. OTHER INCOME  Rs in Thousand 

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

 18.94 

 13.59 

TOTAL  32.53 

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES  

 -   

 -   

TOTAL  -   

11. OTHER EXPENSES

 10.00 

 0.02 

 11.00 

 5.50 

 5.90 

 -   

TOTAL  32.42 

12.1 Earning Per Share (EPS)

 (22.92)

 5,00,000 

 (0.05)

12.2 Auditor’s Remuneration   

 10.00 

12.3 Related Party Disclosures as per IND AS-24

 i) Holding Company:

 ii) Key Management Personnel:

Directors

# 
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

 iii) Rs in Thousand

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

1 Designing Charges Received 

 -   

12.4 Fair Value Measurement  

 The following Methods and Assumptions were used to Estimate the Fair Values:

 
instruments by valuation techniques.

Rs in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Level of input used in

Carrying 
Amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost     

 956.06  -    -    956.06 

 10.00  10.00 

Financial Liabilities     

At Amortised Cost     

 65.58  -    -    65.58 
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BHARTIYA FASHION RETAIL LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs in Thousand

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

Level of input used in

Carrying 
Amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets     

At Amortised Cost    

Financial Liabilities    

At Amortised Cost    

12.5 Ratios

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

 Previous 
Period 

 % of 
Variance 

Reason for 
variance

-4.43%

-110.93%

-100.00%

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar Vinod Kumar Sandal  Manoj Khattar



266

BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 

Bhartiya Urban Infrastructure Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Information Other than the Financial statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

In 

Board of Directors and Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

In 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

IV 

 

 

income 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

 

(b) 
 

 

 

upto 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

Opinion 

for SUSHIL PODDAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

S.K. PODDAR

th
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

I Assets    
 1 Non - Current Assets    
    
  10.00 
 2 Current Assets    
    
  249.18 
  Total Assets   259.18 
II Equity And Liabilities    
 Equity     
  500.00 
  (246.32)
 2  Liabilities    
    
    
  5.50 
 Total of Equity and Liabilities   259.18 

  

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note 
No.

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 

Income    
  - 
  - 

Total Income   - 
EXPENSES    

 30.40 
Total Expenses   30.40 

  (30.40)  (31.50)
Tax Expenses    
i  
ii   - 

  (30.40)  (31.50)
  - 

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   (30.40)  (31.50)
   
  (0.61)

  

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar A.K. Gadhok  Manoj Khattar 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars Note No.  Equity Capital
Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital  
Balance as at 31st March, 2022  500.00 

 -   
 Balance as at 31st March, 2023  500.00 
  -   
 Balance as at 31st March, 2024  500.00 
   
Particulars  Retained Earning

Amount (Rs.
Other Equity  
As at 31st March, 2022  (184.42)

 As at 31st March, 2023  (215.92)
 
 As at 31st March, 2024  (246.32)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024
Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  Year Ended 
31st March, 2024

 Year Ended 
31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 (30.40)

 -   
 (30.40)

 0.50 
Cash Generated from Operations  (29.90)

-
 (29.90)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Security Deposit

 -   
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

 -   
 (29.90)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance  279.08 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance  249.18 

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar A.K. Gadhok  Manoj Khattar 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue from Services

b) Income Tax

 Current Tax
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

2. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS Rs. in Thousand

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

  

 10.00

TOTAL  10.00

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

  

  232.18 

 17.00 

TOTAL  249.18 

4. SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised Share Capital   

 5,000.00 

  5,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up :   

 500.00 

   500.00 

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2024 

Amount (Rs) 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

Amount (Rs) 

 50,000  500.00  50,000 

 -   

 50,000  500.00  50,000 

Name of the share holders  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2024  

% of Holding 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

% of Holding 

 50,000  100.00 

 Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

No. of Shares 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

No. of Shares 

 50,000 
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Rs. in Thousand

Name of the share holders  No. of Shares 
at the beginning 

of the year 

 Change 
During the 

year 

 No. of Shares 
at the end of 

the Year 

 % of Total 
Shares 

 % Change 
during the 

Year 

 50,000  - 

5. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained 
Earning

Total

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  (184.42)  (184.42)

 (31.50)  (31.50)

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  (215.92)  (215.92)

 (30.40)  (30.40)

 -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  (246.32)  (246.32)

6.  OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
31st March, 2024 

 As at 
31st March, 2023 

 5.50 

 TOTAL  5.50 

7.  OTHER EXPENSES

 5.00 

 12.98 

 12.30 

 0.12 

TOTAL  30.40 

8.1  Earning per share computed in accordance with the IND AS -33 is as under:   

 (30.40)

 50,000.00 

 (0.61)
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BHARTIYA URBAN INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Particulars  Year Ended
31st March, 2024 

 Year Ended
31st March, 2023 

5.00

 Credit Risk

 Liquidity Risk

 Market Risk

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

 Previous 
Period 

 % of 
Variance 

Reason for 
variance

SUSHIL PODDAR & CO. For and on behalf of the Board

S. K. Poddar A.K. Gadhok  Manoj Khattar 
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To 
The Shareholder of 
World Fashion Trade Ltd 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements Opinion

Basis of opinion

Fundamental uncertainty relating to going concern basis
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of Company’s Financial Statement

Akin CPA Limited

Sharma, Manish Narain
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars Note

 HK$  HK$ 

Current Assets

 31,685 

31,685

Current Liabilities

58,390

 116,200 

174,590

Net Current Liabilities (142,905)

Net Liabilities (142,905)

5,480,570

(5,623,475)

(142,905)

For and on behalf of the Board

Liu Qiongli 
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars Note

 HK$

156,206

142,888

13,318

--

13,318 

For and on behalf of the Board

Liu Qiongli 
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars

 HK$  HK$ 

Operating Activities

13,318

Adjustment for:

1,415 

14,733

(36,400)

(3,869)

(25,536)

Financing Activities

(1,415)

Net cash used in Financing Activities (1,415)

(26,951)

58,636 

Cash & Cash equivalents at end of Financial Year 31,685 
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Revenue

(b) Foreign Exchange 

(c) Taxation

 

 Deferred tax is not provided.

(d) Trade and other receivables
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

(e) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(g) Related Parties

(h)  Borrowing costs

(i) Accounts payable
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Particulars
HK$ HK$

3. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS

 

5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

6. CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
capital

Accumulated
losses

Total

HK$ HK$ HK$

5,480,570 (5,623,475) (142,905)
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WORLD FASHION TRADE LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

    the 

Particulars

HK$ HK$

 

8. HOLDING COMPANY

9. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

 

10. LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
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ULTIMA SA, SWITZERLAND

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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ULTIMA SA, SWITZERLAND

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

Particulars 31.03.2024

CHF

31.03.2023

CHF

Short Term Assets

1,381,707.32

4,084,919.20

190,678.48

27,022.82

270,447.30

30,078.97

Total Short Term Assets 5,984,852.09

Fixed Assets

Tangibles Assets

4,000.00

Financial Assets

6119.45

2,480,930.00

3,668,374.40

Total Fixed Assets 6,155,423.85

Total Fixed Assets 6,159,423.85

TOTAL ASSETS 12,144,275.94

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

2,576,290.02

Current Liabilities

1,833,654.13

3,132,147.67

66,286.70

5 032,088.50

7 608,378.52

Equity

1,000,000.00

278,000.00

4,057,055.83

(799 158.41)

4,535,897.42

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 12,144,275.94
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ULTIMA SA, SWITZERLAND

Particulars 31.03.2024
CHF

31.03.2023
CHF

Revenues

6,712,305.53

1,439,989.26

Total Revenues 8,152,294.79

Merchandises Costs

5,414,835.30

Total Merchandises Costs 5,414,835.30

Other Expenses

95,896.97

1,454,050.16

121,519.10

36,864.00

87,747.02

Total Other Expenses 1,796,077.25

Result before interests, taxes provisions and depreciation 941,382.24

Financial Incomes and Charges

346,154.25

(24 344.08)

321,810.17

Provisions and Depreciation

1,834,280.94

(437,263.00)

Result Before Taxes (777,445.87)

Taxes

-

21,712.54

21,712.54

Net result of the period (799,158.41)
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ULTIMA SA, SWITZERLAND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31st MARCH, 2024

Particulars 31.03.2024
CHF

31.03.2023
CHF

Information 1 

2,438,000.00

100.00%

11,900.00

100.00%

31,030.00

100.00%

PROPOSED APPROPRIATION OF AVAILABLE EARNINGS

Particulars 31.03.2024
CHF

31.03.2023
CHF

4,057,055.83

4,057,055.83

(799,158.41)

3,257,897.42

Proposal of Board of Directors
e

-

3,257,897.42

3,257,897.42
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ULTIMA ITALIA S.r.l., ITALY

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion



293

ULTIMA ITALIA S.r.l., ITALY

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars Aa at 
31ST March, 2024

As at 
31ST March, 2023

ASSETS

712,822

CURRENT ASSETS

159,631

1,595,051

41,800

184,049

TOTAL ASSETS 2,693,354

LIABILITIES 2,000,000

20,508

2,470

5,584

435,899

CURRENT LIABILITIES

209,006

19,886

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,693,354

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023

INCOME

3,096,594

TOTAL INCOME 3,096,594

COSTS AND EXPENSES 1,723,412

1,145,470

119,628

83,481

TOTAL COSTS 3,071,992

24,603

22,132

2,470



294

DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To 
The Shareholder of 
Design Industry Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Opinion

Basis for opinion

Other Information

Director’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

Akin CPA Limited

Sharma, Manish Narain
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

STATEMENT OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars NOTE 31.03.2024
 HK$ 

31.03.2023
 HK$ 

Current assets

20,772,087

201,675

577,200

27,502,531

5,818,419

54,871,912

Current liabilities

25,947,791

97,500

370,164

23,386 

26,438,841

Net current assets 28,433,077

Net assets 28,433,077

Equity

100,000

28,333,071

Total equity 28,433,071
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

Particulars NOTE 31.03.2024
 HK$ 

31.03.2023
 HK$ 

63,739,809

(53,504,883)

10,234,926

77,079

(9,328,596)

983,409

--

983,409
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Particulars NOTE 31.03.2024
HK$

31.03.2023
HK$

Operating activities

983,409

(26,148)

957,261

(7,514,051)

(2,011)

(10,111,358)

22,624,049

139

(277,445)

 (457,739)

5,218,845

 - 

5,218,845

Investing activities

 26,148 

Net cash generated from investing activities 26,148

Financing activities

 -- 

-

5,244,993

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 573,426

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,818,419 
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Revenue

(b) Foreign exchange

(c) Taxation

(d) Trade and other receivables

(e) Trade and other payables

(f) Cash and cash equivalent
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

(g) Related parties

3. Turnover

Particulars 31.03.2024
HK$

31.03.2023
HK$

Sales 63,739,809 

4. Other Income

-

26,148

50,931 

77,079 

5. Director’s Emolument

-

19,500

19,500
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

 

Particulars 2024
HK$

2023
HK$

1

40,000

20,000

-

-

7. Income Tax Expense

8. Changes In Equity

Particulars Shared Capital
HK$

Retained
Earning

HK$

Total
HK$

As at 31st March, 2024 100,000 28,333,071 28,433,071 

9. Cash And Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2024
HK$

5,818,419

-

5,818,419
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DESIGN INDUSTRY LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

10. Related Party Transactions

      

Particulars 2024
HK$

2023
HK$

7,683,653

18,627,478

 3,697,242 

30,008,373 

156,000

Particulars 2024
HK$

2023
HK$

27,286,331

116,200

27,402,531

2,244,126

23,386

11. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To, 
The shareholders of
Design Industry China Ltd.

I. Opinion

II. Basis for Opinion

Ill.  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

IV. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

ith audi
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

Hangzhou, China
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS OF 31ST MARCH, 2024
Design Industry China Ltd. Monetary Unit: RMB Yuan

Assets Note 
No.

 Ending 
Balance 

 Beginning 
balance 

Liabilities & Owners’ 
Equity

Note 
No.

 Ending 
Balance 

 Beginning 
balance 

    

pa e

nt 

ng

e

Sub-total of current 
assets

16 12,74,644.59 non

   

ent 

    

    

    

    

t     

tion in     

    

a   

Int

tenn 

ent 

Total assets 12,79,533.99 6,16,565.69 Total liabilities & 
owners’ equity

12,79,533.99 6,16,565.69
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 1ST APRIL, 2023 TO 31ST MARCH, 2024

Design Industry China Ltd. Monetary Unit: RMB Yuan

Items Note 
No.

Current Period 
Cumulative

Preceding Period 
Comparative

I.  Revenue from Operations 41,73,596.57

II.  Less: Cost of operations 7,39,993.40

11,754.20

-

6,496.79

 

 

616.88

4,640.53

-

-

-

37,01,889.92

-

34,203.94

  

-14,349.79

-446.23

-

 iii. -2,65,691.16

-

 

-

-

-

-

-

-

IV. -2,65,691.16

11,958.53

 V. -2,77,649.69
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR 1ST APRIL, 2023 TO 31ST MARCH, 2024

Monetary Unit: RMB Yuan

Items Note 
No.

Current period 
cumulative

Preceding Period 
cumulative

I. 1   

8 -47,031.47 -2,11,268.07

II. 9   

 

 

 

 

 

15 - -

III. 16   

 

 

 

 

 

IV. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 23 -47,031.47 -2,11,268.07

V. cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 25 2,16,977.12 2,64,008.59
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE DURING 1ST APRIL, 2023 TO 31ST MARCH, 2024

I. Basics of the company

 

that don

II. Statement in compliance with small business accounting standards

 

III. Prepare the basis

 

IV. Important accounting policies, accounting estimates

1. Fiscal year

2. Book the standard currency

3. Bookkeeping basis and pricing principles

4. Cash equivalents

5. Foreign currency business accounting method
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

6. Receivables and advances

 

in 

into 

7. Inventory Accounting Method

 
the 

8. Fixed Asset pricing and Depreciation Methods

the 

Fixed asset category Depreciation years Estimated net 
residual rate

Annual 
depreciation rate
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

9. The Principle of Revenue Recognition

 

initiated 

income 

in 

11. Major accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and correction of material 
accounting errors for the current period

in 

V. Taxes

Taxes Tax base Tax Rate

the 
in 

paid

Income 

in i
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)

Notes to items of Financial Statements
 (In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

to the 

the 
i to 
and 

to maintenance 
and 

the and 

VI. Key item notes for the Accounting Statement

 amount 

to 

1. Monetary Funds

Items The balance at the 
end of the period

The amount of the 
beginning of the period

Total 216,977.12 264,008.59

2. Accounts Receivable

I 

Age The balance at the end of the 
period

The amount of the beginning 
of the period

Amount Percentage % Amount Percentage %

Total 33,304.03 100.00 37,204.17 100.00

Single-digit name Relationship 
with our
company

The last balance 
of Theperiod

Nature of 
payment

i t 

Total 33,304.03
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

3. Advances Paid

Age
The balance at the end of the 

period
The amount of the beginning of 

the period

Amount Percentage% Amount Percentage%

Total 541,237.67 100.00 259,888.80 100.00

Single-digit name Relationship 
withour company

The last balance 
of the period

Nature of 
payment

t 

Total 541,237.67

4. Other Receivables

Age The balance at the end of 
the period

The amount of the 
beginningof the period

Amount Percentage% Amount Percentage%

Age The balance at the end of 
the period

The amount of the beginning 
of the period

Amount Percentage% Amount Percentage%

Total 211,283.29 100.00 37,266.94 100.00

the 
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

Single-digit name Relationship with 
our company

The last balance 
of the period

Nature of 
payment

Total 210,347.10

5. Inventories

Items The balance at the 
end of the period

The amount of the
beginning of the 

period

Difference between book 
balance and market price 

at the end of the year

Total 271,842.48 13,307.79

6. Fixed Assets

Items The amount of 
the beginning 
of the period

Increase in 
amount for 
the current 

period

Reduction 
amount for 
the current 

period

The balance at 
the end of the 

period

97,788.00 97,788.00

ciation
92,898.60 92,898.60

4,879.40 4,879.40

Items The amount of 
the beginning 
of the period

Increase in 
amount for 
the current 
period

Reduction 
amount for 
the current 
period

The balance at 
the end of the 
period

t

ipment
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

7. Advances Received

Age The balance at the end 
of the period

The amount of the 
beginning of The period

Within
Total 965,585.28 30,111.93

the advance 
voting 

Single-digit name The balance at the end 
of the period

The amount of the 
beginning of the period

Total -

Single-digit name The balance at the end 
of the period

The amount of the 
beginning of the period

Total 965,585.28 30,111.93

8. Taxes and Rates are Payable

Items The balance at the end 
of the period

The amount of the 
beginning of the period

income 

Total 20,180.93 15,036.29

9. Paid-in Capital

The name of the investor The amount of 
the beginning 
of the period

Increase in 
amount for the 
current period

Reduction 
amount for the 
current period

The balance at 
the end of the 

period

Total 200,000.00 200,000.00

10. Capital Reserve

Items The amount of 
the beginning 
of the period

Increase in 
amount for the 
current period

Reduction 
amount for the 
current period

The balance at 
the end of the 

period

Total 3,686.40 3,686.40
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

11. Surplus Reserve

Items The amount of 
the beginning 
of the period

Increase in 
amount for the 
current period

Reduction 
amount for the 
current period

The balance at 
the end of the 

period

Total 36,773.11 36,773.11

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

the 

the 

13. Revenue from Operations

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

Total 4,173,596.57 4,520,901.50

14. Cost of Operations

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

Total 739,993.40 697,914.71

15. Taxes and Surcharge for Operations

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

iona education 

h

t

Total 11,754.20 12,064.28

16. General and Administrative Expenses

Items The number of issues 
in this issue

The number of 
previous periods

i
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

Items The number of 
issues inthis issue

The number of 
previous periods

17. Financial Expenses

Items The number of 
issues in this issue

The number of 
previous periods

Total -14,349.79 26,450.47

18. Non-operating Revenue

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

Total 12,024.56

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

Illustration

Total 12,024.56

19. Non-operating Expenditure

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

damage

Items The number of 
Current period

The number of 
previous periods

Total 70,540.00
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DESIGN INDUSTRY CHINA LTD.

NOTES (CONTD.)
(In RMB Yuan, unless otherwise stated)

VII. Notes on other Transactions

1. Related party relationship and the company’s transactions and balance with related parties

1) The related party that has the control relationship

The name of the 
related party

The place of 
registration

Investment 
amount in

our company

For the Company 
Shareholding 

ratio

Economic 
nature or type

2. Accounts receivable and payable of related parties

Section The name of the 
joint party is called

The last balance 
of the period

The amount of the
beginning of the period

i

VIII. Contingent Matters

IX. Non-adjusted material matters after balance sheet date

X. Other important Matters

Design Industry China Ltd.




